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Business Highlights
In its three core business areas of Household Products, Personal Care and Nicotine Gum, the Group
is pleased to have delivered during 2014 a number of commercial milestones:

• Household Products – On 25 September 2014, Revolymer announced that it had signed a
licence with the international chemicals group Solvay. Under the terms of the deal, Solvay
has exclusive rights to apply Revolymer’s encapsulation technology to expand the market for
its proprietary cleaning and disinfecting active ingredient 6-phthalimido-peroxyhexanoic
acid, known as PAP and commercialised currently by Solvay under the trade mark Eureco™.
The geographic territory of the licence is global, and Solvay intends to target industry
segments including laundry detergents and additives and dish wash agents, in the consumer,
domestic, industrial and institutional markets. Solvay will make royalty payments to Revolymer
on net sales of PAP products incorporating Revolymer technology;

• Personal Care – Revolymer’s amphiphilic moisture management polymer technology has
been shown to provide tangible benefits in skincare, haircare, and colour cosmetics. We are
currently actively engaging the market and supplying samples for customer evaluation. As a
result of these efforts, Revolymer is starting to make progress with supply agreements of
products and ingredients based on this technology to personal care companies and recent
developments have given the Board confidence about the future potential of this business
area;

• Nicotine Gum – There was a significant increase in sales in the period of Revolymer’s
proprietary nicotine gum in Canada (net sales of £1,007k, up 103% compared to £495k in
2013). In addition, on 9 June 2014, a supply and distribution agreement was announced in
respect of Revolymer’s nicotine chewing gum products for the United States of America with
PL Developments LLC (PLD), a leading US manufacturer and supplier of over-the-counter
(OTC) products. Under the terms of the agreement, PLD will be responsible for marketing,
sales and distribution of Revolymer’s nicotine gum products within this territory, which is the
single largest nicotine gum market in the world. The agreement is subject to regulatory
approval of Revolymer’s products and the preparation of an application for marketing
approval is currently under discussion with the United States Food and Drug Administration
(FDA).

Business model: The commercialisation model pursued by Revolymer has been refined during the
year. Recognising that Revolymer operates in both high volume Fast Moving Consumer Goods
(FMCG) markets (e.g. Household Products) as well as relatively lower volume but higher unit value
specialty markets (e.g. Personal Care, Nicotine Gum), we are now pursuing supply agreements as
well as licences. We currently expect to outsource all manufacture under our supply agreements.

Substantial funding position: The funds available at 31 December 2014 were £13.2 million (2013:
£17.7 million), continuing to provide a significant funded “runway” for the business.

Management: Following the departure of Dr Roger Pettman, who resigned from his post as Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) effective 31 January 2014 to pursue other commercial interests, the Board
ran a search for a new CEO. This process culminated in the appointment of Dr Kevin Matthews on
29 September 2014. Dr Matthews has extensive experience in the development of material and
chemical application markets based on innovative technology. The Board also thanks Rob
Cridland for performing the role of Acting CEO, as well as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and
Company Secretary, in the intervening period. Mr Cridland has resumed his role of CFO and
Company Secretary.
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Fertin Pharma A/S and Gumlink A/S litigation: In respect of the alleged patent infringement action
brought by Fertin Pharma A/S and Gumlink A/S against the Company relating to the sale of its
nicotine gum products in Canada, Revolymer announced on 10 November 2014 that the action,
and the counterclaim forming part of Revolymer’s defence, had been settled and discontinued.

Financial Highlights
• Revenue for the period up 94% at £1,022k (2013: £528k), the largest constituent being sales of

nicotine gum in Canada;

• A gross profit made for the first time of £119k (2013: gross loss £343k);

• Other operating income for the period of £32k (2013: £194k), reflecting the Group’s focus on
value generation through strategic commercialisation deals rather than short term revenue
generation;

• Reported loss for the year reduced to £4.3 million (2013: £5.3 million);

• £13.2 million of current cash investments, cash and cash equivalents on hand at the year end
(2013: £17.7 million);

• Net cash outflow from operating activities of £4.7 million (2013: £4.3 million), and net cash
consumed by the overall business of £4.5 million (2013: £4.2 million).

Highlights (continued)
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I present below my third report as Chairman of Revolymer plc. In summary, the Board of Directors is
pleased to note that 2014 was a year of significant commercial and organisational progress for
Revolymer.

Organisation
Following the departure of Dr Roger Pettman on 31 January 2014, our CFO Rob Cridland acted as
CEO until 29 September 2014, when Dr Kevin Matthews joined the business as CEO. Under the
leadership of these Executive Directors the commercial strategy of Revolymer has been further
focused on three core strategic areas; Household Products, Personal Care and Nicotine Gum. This
exercise included, towards the end of the year, a critical review of resources that resulted in a slight
rationalisation of the staff in the business, with a headcount at the year end reduced by 5 to 25
employees. I would like to thank all of our staff for their hard work during the year and look forward
to their continued commitment to the business as we move through the commercialisation phases
that began during the year.

Commercial Development
During the year commercial milestones were achieved in each of the three key business areas. In
Household Products a licence of our encapsulation technology to Solvay in the field of PAP-based
products was announced on 25 September 2014. On 9 June 2014, we announced a supply and
distribution agreement for our nicotine gum in the US with PL Developments, and, also in the
nicotine gum business area, we settled and discontinued the patent dispute with Fertin Pharma A/S
and Gumlink A/S (as announced on 10 November 2014). In Personal Care we have made progress
with framework supply agreements of products and ingredients based on our moisture
management technology to players in this market, and these recent developments have given the
Board confidence about the future potential of this business area.

The commercialisation model pursued by Revolymer has also been refined during the year.
Recognising that Revolymer operates in both high volume FMCG markets (e.g. Household
Products) as well as relatively lower volume but higher unit value specialty markets (e.g. Personal
Care, Nicotine Gum), we are now pursuing supply agreements as well as licences. This
development is covered in some detail in A2 and A3 below.

Our financial performance has also improved slightly over 2013, with revenues (primarily from
nicotine gum sales in Canada) growing for the first time to just over £1 million (2013: £0.5 million)
and annual losses reducing to £4.3 million (2013: £5.3 million). Our objectives remain to move the
business to ultimate profitability through further contracts in our targeted market segments.

Shareholder Engagement
We continue to place great importance on building and maintaining relationships with institutional
and private investors, and we recognise that this is fundamental to achieving our goals. We aim to
achieve this through face-to-face meetings and a range of other communication channels
immediately following the achievement and announcement of significant milestones and financial
results. We also aim to be highly receptive to shareholder interactions, either received directly or
through our broker. The Notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM) that accompanies this Annual
Report sets out the business for our third AGM and we encourage all our shareholders, large or
small, to attend and participate.

Corporate governance
The Board continues to monitor and, where appropriate, amend governance and control
structures, including a comprehensive business risk assessment and mitigation process, and a
medium term strategic planning cycle.

A1. Chairman’s statement



Although full compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code) issued by the
Financial Reporting Council is not compulsory for AIM companies, the Board has chosen to apply
those principles of the Code considered appropriate, taking into consideration Revolymer’s size
and the recommendations contained in the Corporate Governance Code for Small and Mid-Size
Quoted Companies 2013 (QCA guidelines). We intend to move towards full compliance over time,
as the business grows and matures.

The Group’s disclosures in respect of Corporate Governance (Section B2) include expanded
disclosures on the work of the committees of the Board, and information on Directors’ remuneration
is provided in Section B3.

Last year we undertook to review the performance of the Board of Directors in the last quarter of
2014. However, with the arrival of our new CEO at the end of September 2014, the Board decided
that it would be more appropriate to defer this review until the CEO had familiarised himself fully
with the business. The Board performance review was accordingly conducted in the first quarter of
2015 and will be reported on in the 2015 Annual Report.

Conclusion
Based on the progress made in 2014 and the continuing significant market potential for our
technologies, I believe that the business has now progressed into its commercialisation phase and
look forward to further commercial deals as well as the ensuing revenue streams from them.

John (“Jack”) Keenan
Chairman
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A2.1 The Group’s business

Vision and mission statement
Revolymer is an AIM quoted company (registered number 08024489) that designs, develops and
formulates novel polymers to improve the performance of its customers’ and partners’ products.

The vision for Revolymer is to build a high growth, high quality margin, specialty materials business
based on proprietary polymer technology that provides responsive or smart multi-functional
materials. The Board believes that the Company’s technology has broad application.

Revolymer aims to generate growing high quality revenue streams by either licensing its proprietary
technologies or through the supply of proprietary products using an outsourced manufacturing
model. Current target markets are Household Products, Personal Care and Nicotine Gum.

Revolymer’s business model
Revolymer’s business is based on the development and commercial exploitation of proprietary
polymer technology. To commercialise its technology effectively, Revolymer utilises two
complementary models depending on the characteristics of the markets it serves.

Consolidated markets
For highly consolidated, large volume markets a licensing model is the preferred commercial
arrangement. Typically, the licensed partner is responsible for scaling-up manufacture and
ultimately market development and supply. The fact that a number of critical execution elements
are transferred to the partner does result in the commercialisation timeline being heavily influenced
by the partner. This lack of direct control of the timeline is however compensated for by royalty
arrangements which, if successful, generate high quality revenue, i.e. with no or very limited
ongoing resource or capital commitment from Revolymer.

Fragmented markets
For fragmented markets, where individual customers purchase relatively small volumes of high
value products, a product supply model is the preferred commercial arrangement. Supply is
secured through a contract manufacturing organisation and Revolymer is directly responsible for
commercialisation of the product. The advantages of this model are that Revolymer has greater
control of the timeline and direct customer interaction, countered by the requirement to manage
an ongoing resource commitment (e.g. people and working capital).

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
Previously, and as was appropriate in the earlier stages of commercialisation of the Group’s
technologies, the Board has (in addition to its review of financial results) assessed Revolymer’s
performance by reference to the number of third party commercialisation deals signed, and the
business areas into which they fall. Therefore, in 2014, the Board was pleased that commercial
milestones were achieved in each of the three key business areas of Household Products, Personal
Care and Nicotine Gum.

As part of the evaluation of partnership deals, management considers the potential value
generated by each deal, taking into account the estimated size of the opportunity in revenue
terms, the probability of success, and the investment required and the time taken to generate that
revenue. Going forward, it is anticipated that these criteria will also be incorporated into the
measures used by the Board in order to provide a more quantitative assessment of performance.

A2. Business model and strategy



A2.2 Principal risks and uncertainties
It is the responsibility of the Board to assess, monitor and seek to mitigate the business risks facing
Revolymer on an ongoing basis. As such, these risks are kept under review and have been assessed
by the Board recently, as summarised below.

BUSINESS RISK MITIGATING MANAGEMENT ACTIONS

COMMERCIAL – risk that management are
unable to execute sufficient licences and
product supply deals to deliver the Group’s
business plan and move the Company into
profitability and cash generation

A broad portfolio of projects with significant
market engagement is run in parallel to reduce
the dependence of the business on success in
a single product development programme
and to mitigate the challenges inherent in
striking commercialisation deals. Projects are
managed and prioritised against Revolymer’s
objectives using a systematic review process
benchmarking against appropriate technical
and commercial criteria

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY – risk that Group
inventions are not effectively protected, or that
third party intellectual property is infringed by
the Group

A detailed intellectual property policy and set
of procedures is operated with dedicated
in-house resource as well as the support of
external expert patent and trade mark advisers

FINANCIAL – risk that there are insufficient
financial resources to deliver the Group’s
business plan

An appropriate system of internal financial
controls is operated to manage the
deployment of the cash resources on hand,
which provide a significant funded “runway”

COMPLIANCE – risk that faulty or deteriorating
products do not meet specification and harm
or cause loss to customers or end consumers.
As Revolymer develops the product supply
component of its business model, this risk
becomes more significant

In-house regulatory and quality assurance
functions with dedicated and appropriately
skilled resource have responsibility for all
aspects of product safety and compliance,
including management of contractors,
supported as required by external expert
advisers. In addition appropriate insurances
are maintained and regularly monitored for
suitability

9
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A3.1 Business review

Overview
I am delighted to have joined the Revolymer Board in September 2014 and I am excited by the
business potential I see and the quality of the employees. 2014 was a pivotal year in Revolymer’s
progression from a technology development company into a commercial business, with revenue
increasing by 94% to exceed £1 million for the first time, and a number of deals being executed in
key target markets.

Revolymer’s markets for specialty materials have certain key characteristics. Typically the materials
provided by Revolymer represent a small percentage of the final product, and, as such, customers
are usually very cautious with regards to switching due to the perceived risk of poor performance
of their own products and subsequent brand damage. Therefore, qualification processes are
extensive and time consuming. These same characteristics are also of significant benefit in that
substitution rates are low and customers generally have limited price sensitivity if real performance
advantages are delivered. Therefore, securing approvals and subsequently revenues takes time.
Conversely, when these occur they tend to be stable and also represent real validation of the
capability of the Revolymer technology to meet customer needs and deliver differentiated
product performance.

Recognising the time frames involved in developing products, gaining approvals and growing
revenue, management took action in the last quarter of 2014 to focus the cost base and extend
the cash runway of the business at least into 2017. This will allow time to secure greater clarity on
revenue growth, market opportunity and technology adoption, and therefore the extent to which
additional funding will be required before breakeven is achieved.

The development pipeline has progressed in 2014, with milestones achieved in all three target
markets (Household Products, Personal Care and Nicotine Gum).
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In addition to the commercial transactions already entered into by the Company, Revolymer
continues to develop other potential licence and product supply deals, including three under
contract negotiation, three having proved technical success and seven key development projects.

Household Products
Revolymer has been actively developing its responsive encapsulation technology for use in the
laundry and automatic dishwash (ADW) market segments. The technology acts to protect the
sensitive active in the concentrated formulation but rapidly dissolves to release the active when
required during the wash cycle.

Progress in this area was validated by the licence agreement with the international chemicals
group Solvay, announced on 25 September 2014. Under the terms of the agreement, Solvay has
exclusive rights to apply Revolymer’s encapsulation technology to its proprietary cleaning and
disinfecting bleach active ingredient known as PAP and commercialised currently by Solvay under
the trade mark Eureco™. It is intended that the resultant formulations of PAP will be more stable
than existing PAP formats marketed by Solvay, thereby expanding the market for this active into a
broad range of fields including cleaning, disinfection and deodorisation in both solid, gel and liquid
product formats. The geographic territory of the licence is global, and Solvay intends to target
industry segments including laundry detergents and additives and dish wash agents, in the
consumer, domestic, industrial and institutional markets. Veterinary, pharmaceutical and other
health care applications are also included in the deal. As consideration for the licence, Solvay will
make royalty payments to Revolymer on net sales of PAP products incorporating Revolymer
technology.

Similar polymer encapsulation technology is also being developed for a number of other laundry
and ADW actives, including the industry standard laundry bleach sodium percarbonate (SPC), with
a significant opportunity existing if this bleach can be stabilised to the extent that it can then be
used in liquid ADW and liquid laundry for the first time.

Personal Care
In personal care, Revolymer has been principally focused on developing its amphiphilic polymer
systems to provide a range of benefits including:

• Moisture management;

• Substantivity (maintaining a key ingredient at a surface or interface);

• Film forming (improving longevity);

• Sensorial feel (improving texture).

The technology has been shown in internal and customer evaluation to provide tangible benefits in
fields such as skincare, haircare, and colour cosmetics. Revolymer is currently actively engaging
the market and is continuing to supply samples for customer evaluation. As a result of these efforts,
Revolymer is beginning to execute framework supply agreements to allow it to supply materials
once customer application testing is complete.

Revolymer has also developed a novel, 100% natural, polymer system for application as a hair
styling additive and has begun to sample the market.

11
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Nicotine Gum
We continue to report significant progress in the commercialisation, through the private label
channel, of our proprietary nicotine gum products that have a more confectionery-like chew and
taste compared to other marketed nicotine gums.

In Canada, the first country to provide regulatory approval for our product, our nicotine gum
appears to be popular among consumers with sales growing significantly during the year by
103% to £1,007k (2013: £495k).

On 10 November 2014, Revolymer announced that the alleged patent infringement action brought
by Fertin Pharma A/S and Gumlink A/S against the Company relating to the sale of its nicotine gum
products in Canada, and the counterclaim forming part of Revolymer’s defence, had been settled
and discontinued.

On 9 June 2014, Revolymer announced that it had signed a supply and distribution agreement for
its nicotine chewing gum products for the United States of America with PL Developments
LLC (PLD), a leading US manufacturer and supplier of over-the-counter (OTC) products.

The US represents the single largest nicotine gum market, with a single regulatory authority, the
Food and Drug Administration (FDA). According to market estimates agreed between PLD and
Revolymer, the US nicotine gum market has a current retail value of nearly $500 million per annum,
of which more than half is private label, and the balance branded products. Under the agreement,
PLD plans to market and sell private label formats of Revolymer’s nicotine chewing gum products
to its broad customer base including all major mass merchandiser, drug, food, dollar channel, and
club store retailers.

The agreement is subject to regulatory approval of Revolymer’s products by the US FDA, with whom
management is actively engaged and focused on the preparation of an application for marketing
approval.

A3.2 Financial review

Cash flow
Net cash outflow from operating activities was £4.7 million (2013: £4.3 million). Excluding existing
funds withdrawn from or placed on term deposits, investing activity cash flows were limited to
interest actually received of £98k (2013: £193k) and purchase of capital (property, plant and
equipment) of £121k (2013: £183k). Net cash inflow from financing activities was £224k (2013: £84k),
reflecting the proceeds of vested share options exercised during the year, primarily from the
departing CEO Roger Pettman. As a result, the balances on hand at the year end were cash and
cash equivalents of £1.7 million (2013: £2.2 million) and short term deposits of £11.5 million
(2013: £15.5 million); in total £13.2 million (2013 £17.7 million).

Operations
Revenue for the period increased by 94% to £1,022k (2013: £528k), the majority of which was
accounted for by net sales of nicotine gum in Canada of £1,007k (2013: £495k). The net sales of
nicotine gum of £1,007k (2013: £495k) are stated after a deferral of £50k (2013: £252k) relating to our
Canadian customer’s contractual right to return product if it is unsold at its time expiry, provided this
relates to sales in excess of minimum customer purchase obligations; such arrangements being
customary in distribution agreements of this type. The deferral has been significantly reduced from
2013 as a result of there being no such returns in 2014.

A3. Chief Executive’s review (continued)



For the first time a gross profit of £119k was achieved (2013: gross loss £343k), after charging cost of
sales of £903k (2013: £871k). Cost of sales included non-cash provisions relating to the write-down of
inventory totalling £30k (2013: £263k).

Other operating income for the period was £32k (2013: £194k), mainly comprising receipts from
potential licensing partners in the Consumer Specialties business areas. The lower income
compared to the prior period reflects Revolymer’s deliberate strategy of focusing on delivery of
significant licences and other partnership deals, rather than short term collaborative income.

Reduced administrative expenses of £4.6 million were incurred in the year (2013: £5.3 million). Within
administrative expenses, non cash provisions were reduced significantly compared to 2013,
reflecting lower costs of defending the alleged Canadian patent infringement, following the
settlement with Fertin Pharma A/S and Gumlink A/S announced on 10 November 2014
(2013: £486k). Research and development expenditure on Revolymer’s product pipeline increased
to £1.9 million (2013: £1.5 million).

Finance income
Interest receivable on bank deposits and investments was £110k (2013: £193k).

Loss for the year
Overall the loss for the year reduced to £4.3 million (2013: £5.3 million), and the basic and diluted
loss per share was 7.7p (2013: 9.8p).

Outlook
Financial performance during the year has improved over 2013 and the business remains well
funded, with £13.2 million of current cash investments, cash and cash equivalents on hand at the
year end (2013: £17.7 million). Management will deploy these resources carefully to maximise the
funded runway and allow time to provide clarity on future revenue streams and, consequently,
refinancing needs.

Dr Kevin Matthews
Chief Executive Officer

27 March 2015
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The business activities of the Group, its current operations and those factors likely to affect its future
results and development, together with a description of its financial position, are described in the
Chairman’s statement in section A1, the description of our business model and strategy in A2 and
the Chief Executive’s review in section A3. The principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group
and a summary of the steps taken to mitigate these risks are described in section A2.2. Critical
accounting assumptions and key sources of estimation uncertainty affecting the results and
financial position disclosed in this Annual Report are discussed in note 3 to the accounts.

Primarily, the Group meets its day to day working capital requirements through existing cash
resources which, at 31 December 2014, amounted to £13.2 million (2013: £17.7 million).

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report.

A4. Going concern



A5.1 Employees
Revolymer places considerable value on the involvement of its employees. It is committed to
developing policies that encourage all employees to achieve their potential and to contribute to
the success of the Company. Revolymer operates an approved share option scheme to ensure
that eligible employees are able to share in the future success of the Company and have a sense
of ownership. Revolymer’s human resources strategy is focused on providing a positive
organisational culture and is guided by the Company’s core objectives.

Equality and diversity
The Group’s aim is that its employees should be able to work in an environment free from
discrimination, harassment and bullying, and that employees, job applicants, customers, suppliers
and other business contacts should be treated fairly regardless of:

• race, colour, nationality (including citizenship), and ethnic or national origins;

• gender, sexual orientation, marital or family status;

• religious or political beliefs or affiliations;

• disability, impairment or age;

• real or suspected infection with HIV/AIDS;

• membership of a trade union.

Organisational planning
Revolymer regularly reviews its organisational structure and reporting relationships in order to
maximise their effectiveness. Revolymer continues to employ a balance of junior and more
experienced, senior staff, recruited predominantly from the polymer, other chemicals or
technology industries, to support its product programmes.

Recruitment and retention
Revolymer has a defined policy for the recruitment of any new or replacement staff, the
employment of which must be agreed and signed off by the CFO and CEO.

Revolymer is committed to achieving equal opportunities in employment and to ensuring that
performance is assessed on an individual’s capabilities and demonstrated results. Full and fair
consideration is given to applications for employment made by all persons, having regard to their
particular aptitude and abilities. The Company seeks where practicable to identify a diverse pool
of applicants.

Revolymer currently reports data on the distribution of its workforce by gender. As at
31 December 2014 this split was 35% female and 65% male (2013: 41% female and 59% male).

Training and development
Revolymer considers continuous learning to be one of its core values and training is a key
constituent of the employee appraisal system. Through the ongoing development and training of
our employees we look to ensure that our workforce is ready to address the challenges ahead. We
assess talent regularly across the business in order to understand better our organisational strengths
and knowledge gaps.

15
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Revolymer looks to ensure that managers have the skills to foster a culture of creativity, openness
and rigour, focused around good practice and quality standards.

Reward and recognition
Through a variety of reward and recognition mechanisms, Revolymer has developed a
performance-driven culture that seeks to attract, retain and motivate its employees. We use a
combination of approaches to reward good performance, which include consolidated salary
awards, an annual bonus and equity based incentives, as well as simple individual
acknowledgement and recognition.

Employee performance is assessed at least once a year and is measured against individual, team
and corporate objectives.

Communication
The Company recognises the value of communication in motivating employees and managing the
business. Revolymer looks to encourage the exchange of views and information between
employees and the Company. Email is used extensively both to communicate Company matters
to employees and to elicit questions, feedback and requests. We aim to maintain a policy of
accessibility of senior management to all employees.

We also engage our employees through regular updates and timely communication of Company
news, periodic employee meetings and educational sessions on various aspects of our science,
technology and business.

Health and safety
The health and safety of employees and those who work with us remains a top priority for
Revolymer. A key objective for the health and safety function is the continuation and development
of health and safety procedures and systems. Accordingly, a new Safety Committee chaired by
the CEO was recently instigated, and a new Safety Officer appointed, as well as the creation of an
additional role of Laboratory Health and Safety Officer. The Company has maintained an excellent
safety record that can be attributed to its proactive approach to accident prevention,
encouraging staff to report safety issues openly and to implement measures beyond legal minimum
requirements. Revolymer’s Safety Officers have direct access to the CEO, who is the Board member
charged with leading on health and safety matters. The Safety Committee produces an annual
Revolymer Health and Safety Review Report for presentation by the CEO to the Board for approval.
In addition, the CEO reports on health and safety matters to the Board periodically as required.

A5.2 Environment
Revolymer continues to explore ways to minimise its impact on the environment. A large amount of
our energy usage is attributed to the management of the air-handling, heating and lighting of our
laboratories and offices. Through the careful monitoring of energy consumption we have been
able to highlight areas of improvement so that valuable resources can be conserved. LED tubes
are being progressively installed to conserve energy. Infrastructure changes have also allowed us
to explore ways of segregating various waste streams providing more opportunities for recycling.
Paper, toner cartridges, IT equipment and laboratory equipment are recycled. We have chosen a
local waste carrier who line picks other commercial waste thereby achieving recycling rates in
excess of 80%. Telephone conferencing facilities have been introduced to reduce travel to external
meetings. In order to relieve pressure on corporate parking, traffic congestion and to encourage a
healthier workforce, Revolymer takes advantage of the Green Transport Plan introduced by the
government which aims to make cycling more attractive and accessible by introducing a “Ride to

A5. Corporate social responsibility (continued)



Work” scheme which all employees are eligible to participate in. The CEO is responsible to the
Board for environmental matters.

Political and charitable donations
Revolymer’s policy is that it does not donate money, services or facilities to political parties.
However, Revolymer may campaign for, or against, proposed changes in legislation or regulations
that might affect its business or the environment within which it operates. Officers or employees,
with Board approval, may participate in government advisory committees, regulatory advisory
committees or non-government organisations that are relevant to the business. No political
donations were made during the current or prior financial years.

The Company encourages employee involvement in charitable causes either as individuals or in
groups. However, no charitable donations were made directly by Revolymer during the current or
prior financial years.

A6. Approval of strategic report
Section A of this Annual Report comprises the Strategic Report for the Group which has been
drawn up and presented in accordance with, and in reliance upon, applicable English company
law, in particular Chapter 4A of the Companies Act 2006, and the liabilities of the Directors in
connection with this Annual Report shall be subject to the limitations and restrictions provided by
such law.

It should be noted that the Strategic Report has been prepared for the Group as a whole, and
therefore gives greater emphasis to those matters which are significant to the Company and its
subsidiary undertakings when viewed as a whole.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

Robin Cridland
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

27 March 2015
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John (Jack) Michael Keenan (aged 78) – Independent
Non-executive Chairman
Jack joined the Board on 2 July 2012 but has been a Non-executive Director of
Revolymer (U.K.) Limited since January 2008. Jack is the independent Non-
executive Chairman of the Company and has extensive industry and capital
markets experience, having been Chairman and CEO of Kraft Foods International
and CEO of the business that is now Diageo Plc. He has served as an executive
director on the Diageo and Moet Hennessy boards, and as a non-executive
director on the boards of Marks & Spencer Plc, Tomkins Plc, The Body Shop

International Plc and General Mills, Inc. Jack is also the founder and CEO of his current consulting
business Grand Cru Consulting Ltd and non-executive chairman of Stock Spirits Group Plc. Jack has
been patron of the Centre for International Business and Management at Judge Business School for
fourteen years and an executive director for the prior six years. He graduated from Tufts University
with honours and has an MBA from Harvard. He is a resident of the United Kingdom.

Kevin Matthews (aged 51) – Chief Executive Officer
Kevin joined the Board on 29 September 2014, when he assumed the role of Chief
Executive Officer. He has over 20 years of experience in senior management roles
in the chemical, technology and pharmaceutical sectors and brings significant
marketing, strategy and business management expertise, along with a broad
technical understanding, to Revolymer’s management team. Kevin joined
Revolymer from Isogenica Ltd, a business providing drug discovery services to the
pharmaceutical industry, where he served as CEO since 2009. Prior to that, he led
the chemical technology company Oxonica as its CEO for eight years, during
which time he completed its AIM listing in 2005 and secured numerous significant

partnership deals and M&A transactions. He is currently serving as a non-executive director of the
performance materials business Low and Bonar PLC and, between 2005 and 2014, was a non-
executive director of the FTSE 250 specialty chemicals company, Elementis plc, where he helped to
oversee a significant and successful strategic repositioning of the business. He was also a non-
executive director of Cellectricon AB, a Swedish private biotechnology business, from 2011 to 2014.
Kevin began his career holding a number of increasingly senior roles at ICI, Albright & Wilson and
Rhodia. He is a graduate of the University of Oxford, where he was also awarded a DPhil in Organic
Chemistry.

Robin (Rob) James Scott Cridland (aged 47) – Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary
Rob joined the Board at its incorporation on 10 April 2012 as Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary. He joined Revolymer (U.K.) Limited in September 2008
from Renovo Group plc where he spent seven years as Executive Director of
Finance and Business Development. He was part of the Renovo management
team that successfully took the company from a start-up organisation through to
IPO on the Official List in London, and executed a significant licence of its lead
drug to, and equity investment by, the Shire pharmaceuticals group. He began his

career at Coopers & Lybrand Deloitte, before moving on to senior transactional roles at Enskilda
Securities and senior finance and transactional roles at GlaxoWellcome and GlaxoSmithKline. Rob
has a First Class MA from the University of Oxford and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.
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Julian Spenser Heslop (aged 61) – Independent Non-Executive
Director
Julian joined the Board upon Admission on 10 July 2012. He is also currently a
non-executive director of Dechra Pharmaceuticals Plc and previously served as
Chief Financial Officer of GlaxoSmithKline plc (“GSK”) between April 2005 and
March 2011 where he was responsible for activities such as financial reporting and
control, tax and treasury, finance systems and insurance. He was also Chairman of
ViiV Healthcare Limited until March 2011. He served as Senior Vice President,
Operations Controller of GSK between January 2001 and March 2005 and as

Financial Controller of Glaxo Wellcome plc from April 1998 to December 2000. Prior to this, Julian
had senior finance roles at Grand Metropolitan plc and Imperial Brewing and Leisure. He is a Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Michael (Mike) Charles Nettleton Townend (aged 52) –
Non-executive Director
Mike joined the Board on 2 July 2012 and is the representative of IP2IPO Services
Limited, which had been the corporate Director of Revolymer (U.K.) Limited since
February 2006. He has 20 years’ experience in all aspects of equity capital markets
and investment processes. He is currently Chief Investment Officer of IP Group plc,
having previously served as Head of Capital Markets for four years. Mike joined IP
Group plc from Lehman Brothers where he was Managing Director of European
Equities and Head of Equity Sales to Hedge Funds. Mike was also a key member of

the senior relationship management programme. Prior to this, he was an executive director at
Donaldson, Lufkin and Jenrette with responsibility for building the Bank’s business with hedge funds
and alternatives. Mike has sourced, co-led or led numerous private and public transactions. Mike is
the IP Group plc representative on the Boards of Modern Water plc and Evocutis plc and also a
non-executive director of Green Urban Transport Ltd.

Robert Milton Frost (aged 47) – Non-executive Director
Robert joined the Board on 2 July 2012. He is a senior advisor to Naxos UK and prior
to joining Naxos, he was a Managing Director in charge of the London office of
Allianz Capital Partners GmbH and instrumental in the development of its private
equity, mezzanine and infrastructure activities. Prior to this, Robert was part of the
founding team of Nikko Principal Investments Limited and was part of the original
Nomura Principal Finance Group. Robert has an MBA from the London Business
School, 20 years of private equity experience and has board level responsibility
with several Naxos portfolio companies internationally.

Dr Bryan Crawford Dobson (aged 62) – Independent Non-executive
Director
Bryan joined the Board on 13 September 2012 and has more than 30 years’
experience in the chemicals industry; 28 years with ICI and 5 years with the Croda
group, and was most recently President Global Operations for Croda International.
He was a member of the executive management teams in Croda and in a
number of large speciality chemicals businesses in ICI, and has extensive
management experience running regional and global business units in the UK, US,
Belgium and The Netherlands. He also has expertise in developing new business in

the speciality chemicals sectors; extensive functional experience in R&D and operations, and
significant M&A experience. He is also currently a director of The Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust and non-executive chairman of Applied Graphene Materials Plc.
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The Directors recognise the importance of, and are committed to, high standards of corporate
governance. Although compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code is not compulsory for
AIM companies, the Directors aim to apply those principles of the Code as they consider
appropriate to a group of Revolymer’s size, taking into account the recommendations contained
in the QCA Guidelines.

The Revolymer Board is specifically responsible for the business risk assessment and mitigation policy
and oversees an overarching review of such risks and mitigating steps by management.

B2.1 Leadership
The Board of Directors is responsible for overall Group strategy, for approving major third party
agreements, transactions and financing matters, and for monitoring the progress of the Group
against the medium term strategic plan and annual budget. All Directors receive sufficient relevant
information on financial, business and corporate issues prior to Board meetings and there is a
schedule of matters reserved for decisions of the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board comprised between one and two executives
(one after the departure of Dr Pettman and before the arrival of Dr Matthews) and five non-
executives, and reflects a balance of different experience and backgrounds. The roles of
Chairman (which is a non-executive position) and Chief Executive Officer have been split by the
Board and there is a clear division of responsibility between the two. The Board considers Jack
Keenan, Julian Heslop and Bryan Dobson to be independent in character and judgement.

The names of the Directors in office at the date of this Annual Report and their biographical details
are set out in section B1.

Dr Roger Pettman was a Director and CEO until his resignation effective 31 January 2014, and so is
not included in section B1. Dr. Pettman had been CEO of the business since its inception in 2005
and led the flotation on the AIM Market in July 2012. He played a significant role driving the
development of a broad portfolio of polymer-based IP which is now being applied to improve the
performance of a variety of consumer products within the FMCG industry and other industrial
markets. Dr Pettman’s particular expertise within Revolymer was in the establishment of the
business, having identified the commercial model of using novel polymers to improve the
performance of existing consumer products.

Between 31 January and 29 September 2014, Revolymer CFO and Company Secretary Rob
Cridland served as acting Chief Executive Officer. On 29 September, as a result of a search
undertaken by the Board and directly managed by the Nominations Committee, Dr Kevin
Matthews commenced as CEO, bringing significant marketing, strategy and business management
expertise, along with a broad technical understanding, to Revolymer’s management team.

B2.2 Audit Committee
The Company’s Audit Committee comprises Jack Keenan, Robert Frost and Julian Heslop. Julian
Heslop is the Chairman of the Committee. The Audit Committee is required to meet at least twice a
year and is responsible for reviewing: the integrity of the financial statements of the Group; the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal financial controls and risk management
processes (including the extent to which internal audit review is required); the adequacy and
security of the Company’s arrangements for its employees and contractors to raise concerns about
possible wrongdoing; and the Company’s procedures for detecting fraud. It also reviews the
external auditor’s performance and independence and makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of the auditor.
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During the year the Audit Committee met five times. During these meetings it reviewed the system
of internal financial controls (including the need for an internal audit function), the Group’s whistle
blower and Bribery Act policies, and the 2013 Annual Report and 2014 Interim Report,
recommending them to the Board. The Committee also reviewed its own effectiveness and agreed
the 2014 full year audit plan proposed by the external auditors. Finally, the Committee
recommended to the Board the appointment of a new external audit partner from within Ernst &
Young LLP, the Group’s existing external auditors, as a result of routine partner rotation for
independence reasons.

B2.3 Remuneration Committee
The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises Jack Keenan, Bryan Dobson and Julian
Heslop. Bryan Dobson is the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee is required to meet at
least twice a year and is responsible for determining and reviewing the policy for the remuneration
of the Executive Directors and such other members of the executive management as it is
designated to consider. Within the terms of the agreed policy, it determines the total individual
remuneration of the Executive Directors. The Committee also approves the design of, and
determines targets for, any performance-related pay schemes, reviews the design of any share
incentive plans, determines the awards to the Executive Directors and sets the policy for, and
scope of, pension arrangements for each Executive Director. Finally, the Committee approves the
design and principles of the remuneration schemes for the employees of the business outside of the
management team, which are implemented by the executive Directors.

During the year the Remuneration Committee met three times, during which meetings it set the
salary review, bonus and equity incentive schemes for 2014, it reviewed performance and made
awards under these schemes and it devised the salary review, bonus and equity incentive schemes
for 2015.

B2.4 Nominations Committee
The Company’s Nominations Committee comprises Bryan Dobson and Julian Heslop. Bryan Dobson
is the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee is required to meet at least once a year and is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and recommending to
the Board any changes required, for succession planning and for identifying and nominating for
approval of the Board candidates to fill vacancies as and when they arise. The Committee is also
responsible for reviewing the results of the Board performance evaluation process, making
recommendations to the Board concerning suitable candidates for the role of senior independent
Director (if applicable) and the membership of the Board’s committees, and the re-election of
Directors at the annual general meeting.

During the year the Nomination Committee met once in order to agree the approach for the
recruitment of a new CEO following the departure of Dr Roger Pettman on 31 January 2014, and to
empower Bryan Dobson to manage this process.

All Board committees operate within defined terms of reference and sufficient resources are made
available for them to undertake their duties. The terms of reference for each committee are
available from the company website at http://revolymer.com (in the Investor Relations section and
under Corporate Governance).

B2.5 Other governance measures

Directors and employees securities dealings
The Board has complied with and will continue to comply with Rule 21 of the AIM Rules relating to
Directors’ dealings and also takes all reasonable steps to ensure compliance with that rule by the
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Group’s applicable employees. The Company has adopted a code on dealing in securities of the
Company and takes all reasonable steps to ensure compliance by the Directors and relevant
employees.

Secretariat
The Board annually reviews the effectiveness of the historic combination of Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary into one appointment. In view of the current size of both the Board and
the Company, the Board believes that it is well served by the advice received in company
secretarial matters by relying on advice from:

• Rob Cridland (CFO) who has acted as a Company Secretary to public limited companies
during the past nine years;

• the Company’s solicitors (Field Fisher Waterhouse LLP and BPE Solicitors LLP);

• the Company’s auditor (Ernst & Young LLP);

• the Company’s nominated adviser and broker (Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited);

• the Company’s registrars (Capita Asset Services);

• the Audit Committee.

Accountability
Reviews of the performance of the Group’s main business lines are included within the Strategic
Report. The Board intends that this presents a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements are described in section B5.

An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group, which is regularly reviewed by the Board, was in place for the year ended 31 December
2014 and to the date of these financial statements (as described in section A2.2 and B2.2).

The Directors are responsible for the systems of internal control throughout the Group, including
over financial reporting, and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against the risk of material misstatement or loss and that assets are
safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition. In assessing what constitutes reasonable
assurance, the Directors have regard to the relationship between the costs and benefits from
particular aspects of the control system.

Internal control over financial reporting within the Group is provided by a process designed, under
the supervision of the CFO, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes, including the
process of preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Such statements are prepared
by the Financial Controller assisted by a third party part-time consultant and reviewed both by the
Chief Financial Officer and the Chairman of the Audit Committee. All four of these individuals are
Chartered Accountants with significant financial experience.

In addition, the system of internal controls includes policies and procedures intended to ensure that
records are maintained that fairly, and in reasonable detail, reflect transactions and disposition of
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assets to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of the financial statements.

Internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations (particularly given
the total number of staff employed by the Group) and may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
internal control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may reduce.

Conflicts of interest
During the year no Director notified the Board of any conflicts of interest.

Relations with shareholders
Revolymer attaches a high priority to effective communication with both institutional and private
shareholders. The AGM is the principal forum for dialogue with private shareholders. A business
presentation is made at the AGM and there is an opportunity for shareholders to put questions to
the Directors. Revolymer aims to maintain regular contact with institutional shareholders through a
programme of one to one visits, group meetings and briefings scheduled around the
announcement of significant commercial developments in the business and the preliminary and
interim financial results.

Financial risk factors
The Group’s relatively simple structure, principally operating in the UK, and the lack of debt
financing, reduces the range of financial risks to which it is exposed. Monitoring of financial risk is
part of the Board’s ongoing risk management process, the effectiveness of which is reviewed
annually. The Group’s agreed policies are implemented by the CFO, who submits financial reports
at each Board meeting. The Group has not, to date, used derivative transactions and it is the
Group’s policy not to undertake any trading in financial instruments.

Interest rate risk
The Group does not have any committed borrowing facilities as its cash balances are sufficient to
finance its current operations. Consequently, there is no material exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit risks
The Group’s treasury policy is to place funds in short term deposits with a panel of UK financial
institutions rated at least F1/A1/P1 (or equivalent ratings) up to pre-agreed limits.

Cash flow and liquidity risk
The Group presently relies on its invested funds rather than trading receipts to meet its
commitments. The maturity profile of its investments is structured to ensure that sufficient liquid funds
are available to meet current operating requirements, in line with its treasury policy. The Directors
do not consider that there is presently a material cash flow or liquidity risk.
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This report is on the activities of the Remuneration Committee for the year ended 31 December
2014 and sets out the remuneration policy and remuneration details for the Executive and
Non-executive Directors of the Company.

This report is split into three main areas: the Statement by the Chairman of the Committee (B3.1),
the Policy Report (B3.2, which was approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in
May 2014) and the Annual Report on Remuneration (B3.3, which provides details on remuneration
in the period and other selected information and is subject to shareholder approval at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting).

B3.1 Statement by the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Dear Shareholder

The philosophy underpinning the Group’s remuneration policy is to seek to produce an outcome
which is fair and appropriate to the Company, its shareholders and its senior executives. Company
performance is central to the policy, with the focus being on both short and long term qualitative
and quantitative objectives.

For 2014, the Committee set a stretching target in respect of the annual incentive for management
and staff related to the execution of deals across the Group’s business areas, which was met at a
level of 58% of the target set. As a consequence, performance bonuses have been paid to the
CFO and other members of the management team and staff in respect of this year based on the
achievement level met. Since Kevin Matthews started as CEO on 29 September 2014, he is not
eligible for a bonus or salary review in respect of 2014. However he will be eligible for these benefits
in respect of the full year 2015, as well as a grant in that year under the Long Term Incentive Plan
(LTIP).

Other management and staff will also be eligible for grants in respect of 2015 under the LTIP which,
if made, will also be awarded after the publication of this Annual Report. Further details in respect
of the Executive Directors are disclosed in section B3.3.

The challenge for the Remuneration Committee remains, as ever, to ensure that the remuneration
remains appropriately structured to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors, management
and staff, whilst providing alignment with shareholders’ interests and, most importantly, directly
linking to the achievement of the Company’s strategy.

I commend this report to shareholders.

Dr Bryan Dobson
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

27 March 2015
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B3.2 Policy report
Introduction
This part of the report sets out the Directors’ remuneration policy which was approved at the 2014
Annual General Meeting. The policy will apply until the Annual General Meeting in 2017.

In setting the remuneration policy for Executive Directors, the Committee takes into account:

• the need to attract, retain and motivate high quality Executive Directors and management to
deliver the Company’s strategy;

• the maintenance of a clear link between rewards and Company performance;

• the objective of achieving an appropriate mix of fixed and variable pay;

• the views of our investors and shareholder bodies;

• the requirement, where appropriate, to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code;

• the need to encourage management to adopt a level of risk which is in line with the risk
appetite of the business as approved by the Board;

• the requirement that no-one is being rewarded more than once for the same achievement;

• the requirement for Executive directors to maintain a significant level of investment in the
Company’s shares from exercised vested options or other means;

• periodic peer group comparisons through external benchmarking.

Remuneration policy for the Chairman and Executive Directors
The Company’s policy is to ensure that the Executive Directors and management are fairly
rewarded for their individual performance having regard to the importance of retention and
motivation. The performance measurement of the Executive Directors and management and the
determination of their annual remuneration packages are undertaken by the Committee. The
Committee also sets the salary for the Chairman, taking account of his performance and time
commitment in the role.

The Committee has given due regard to the link between remuneration and strategy, seeking to
ensure that the remuneration structures in place do not encourage excessive risk or activities that
are not in line with the agreed strategy.

The Committee pays due regard to the levels of remuneration within the Group when determining
the remuneration of Executive Directors and other senior employees. It also seeks to ensure that the
incentive structures for senior management do not raise environmental, social or governance risks
by inadvertently motivating inappropriate behaviour.

Key aspects of the remuneration policy for Executive Directors and management
The Executive Directors and management receive a combination of fixed and performance-
related elements of remuneration. Fixed remuneration consists of salary, benefits and pension
contributions. Performance-related remuneration consists of participation in the annual incentive
scheme and an annual award of shares under the LTIP. The performance-related elements of
remuneration are intended to constitute a significant proportion of an individual’s potential total
remuneration. The tables below embody the policy applied.
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Purpose and link to
strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance

conditions

BASE SALARY

To provide a
competitive, fixed
cash component that
reflects the scope of
individual
responsibilities and
recognises sustained
individual
performance in the
role.

Remunerate fairly for
individual
performance, having
regard to the
importance of
motivation. Take into
account
remuneration levels in
the Group as a
whole, individual and
business performance
and periodic external
benchmarking.

Salaries for the year
ended 31 December
2014 are set out in
section B3.3.
Increases, if the
Committee is satisfied
with the individual’s
performance, will
normally broadly
follow those awarded
for the rest of the
organisation.
Changes in the scope
or responsibilities of an
Executive’s role may
require an adjustment
to salary above the
normal level of
increase or arise from
a periodic
benchmarking
review. In respect of
new Executives,
salaries will be
broadly in line with
external
benchmarking and
other relevant
circumstances, but
one time payments to
account for
compensation for
previous entitlements
surrendered may also
be required.

None.

BENEFITS

To provide market
levels of benefits on a
cost-effective basis.

Private health cover
for the Executive and
their family.
Other benefits may
be offered from time
to time broadly in line
with market practice.

These benefits are
made available
through third party
providers and
therefore the cost to
the Company may
vary from year to
year. It is intended the
maximum value of
benefits offered will
remain broadly
in line with market
practice.

None.
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Purpose and link to
strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance

conditions

PENSION

To provide
competitive post-
retirement benefits.

Pension contributions
amounting to 10% of
base salary of the
Executive are made
into a money
purchase pension
scheme.

For new external
appointments a cash
allowance or
Company
contribution into a
money purchase
pension scheme may
be offered broadly in
line with market
practice.

None.

ANNUAL INCENTIVE

To incentivise
Executives to achieve
specific,
predetermined goals
that drive delivery of
the Company’s
operational
objectives over a
one year period.
To reward individual
performance.

Each Executive’s
annual incentive is
based on a mix of
stretching financial,
strategic and risk-
related performance
measures that are
intended to be
aligned to
shareholders’
interests.
Furthermore, any
payment within this
policy is ultimately at
the discretion,
reasonably applied,
of the Remuneration
Committee. The
annual bonus is non-
pensionable.

Bonus payment is
determined by
measurement against
a board determined
Threshold (below
which no bonus is
payable) and a
board determined
Target. The maximum
bonus potential is
200% of salary.
However, for Target
performance a
maximum bonus of
100% of salary will be
awarded, with
additional amounts
only being awarded
for exceptional
performance, and
only
at the discretion of
the
Remuneration
Committee.

The performance
metrics are set by the
Committee at the
start of the year with
input from the
Chairman and CEO.
The bonus is
calculated by pre-
defining the
performance metrics
required to achieve
the Threshold.
Achievement of the
remaining metrics will
then be prorated
between Threshold
and Target. Details of
the performance
Target set for the year
under review and
performance against
them are provided in
section B3.3 unless
disclosure is deemed
to be commercially
sensitive.
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Purpose and link to
strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance

conditions

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (LTIP)

To incentivise
Executives to achieve
enhanced returns for
shareholders.
To encourage long-
term retention of key
Executives.
To align the interests
of Executives and
shareholders.

An annual award of
shares subject to
continued service
and challenging
performance
conditions over a
three year period.
The performance
conditions are
reviewed on an
annual basis to ensure
they remain
appropriate and are
currently based on
increasing
shareholder value.
Awards are structured
as nil cost options with
a seven year life after
vesting.

The maximum award
is 200% of salary in
any one year taking
into account the
current market price
of the ordinary shares
on the date of the
award.
In view of the size of
the Company the
Committee may,
however, offer an
exceptional award
on appointment of a
new Executive
Director, as is
common with AIM
quoted companies, in
order to attract the
highest level of
candidates.
Performance
conditions will be
applied in line with
the normal annual
awards.

Granted subject to
achieving the
performance
conditions set at the
date of the award.
A percentage of the
award will vest for
Threshold
performance with full
vesting taking place
for equalling or
exceeding the
performance Target.
In between the
Threshold and Target
there may be pro
rata vesting.
The Committee
retains the ability to
amend the
performance
conditions for future
grants to ensure that
such grants achieve
the stated purpose.

EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLAN

To incentivise all other
eligible staff and to
encourage
long‐term retention.

Awards may be
granted under the
Revolymer plc LTIP.
However, such
awards will either be
approved EMI or
unapproved market
value share options as
determined by the
Committee and with
vesting periods in line
with those set for the
above LTIP awards
(i.e. three years).

As determined by the
Committee, but
usually a pool will be
created based on a
percentage (not
expected to be more
than 50%) of the
aggregate salary cost
of the eligible staff,
and this will then be
allocated to
individuals by the
Executive Directors
based on merit.

Eligible staff members
must be in the
employment of the
Group at vesting.
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Remuneration Committee flexibility, discretion and judgment
The Committee operates the variable incentive plans according to their respective scheme rules
and in accordance with HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) rules where relevant. To ensure the
efficient administration of these plans the Committee advises on certain operational matters. These
include the determination of:

• the participants of the plans on an annual basis;
• the timing of grant of award and/or payment;
• the quantum of an award and/or a payment (within the limits set in the policy tables above);
• the extent of vesting based on actual performance;
• adjustments required in certain circumstances (e.g. change of control, rights issues, corporate

restructuring etc);
• “good/bad leaver” status for incentive plan purposes and the appropriate treatment chosen;
• the annual performance measures, targets and thresholds for the annual incentive and LTIP

award.

If an event occurs which results in the annual incentive or LTIP conditions being deemed no longer
appropriate then the Committee will have the ability to adjust the measures and/or targets so that
the conditions are not materially less difficult to satisfy.

Key aspects of the remuneration policy for the Chairman and Non-executive
Directors
The Chairman and Non-executive Directors have service contracts providing for a three year term
with an expectation that they will be available to serve at least one further term. The fees of the
Chairman and Non-executive Directors are reviewed annually by the Executive Directors and
Chairman and recommendations are brought to the Board. The Chairman is not involved in the
determination of his own fees. The Chairman and Non-executive Directors are not eligible to
participate in annual incentive plans, long-term incentive plans or pension arrangements. Benefits
may, however, be provided to Non-executive Directors related to the performance of their duties
(e.g. reimbursement of travel and hospitality).

The Company’s Articles of Association place a restriction on the aggregate amount payable to
Non-executive Directors to the sum of £500,000.
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Choice of performance measures and approach to target setting
The choice of performance measures applicable to the annual incentive scheme reflects the
Committee’s belief that incentives should be appropriately challenging and tied to the
achievement of both forward and backward-looking financial objectives, risk metrics and specific
individual objectives linked to the Company’s strategy.

The Committee reviews the measures each year and varies them as appropriate to reflect the
priorities for the business in the year ahead. A sliding scale of targets is set for each measure to
encourage continuous improvement and encourage the delivery of above-target performance.

The LTIP is subject to relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) growth measures to provide a focus on
the Group’s financial performance and shareholder value creation. TSR targets are currently set as
specific milestones for the Company’s share price performance over the vesting period.

Policy on recruitment and promotion
Salaries for newly recruited Directors will be set to reflect their skills and experience, the Company’s
intended pay positioning and the market rate for the role. If it is considered appropriate to appoint
a new Director on a below market salary (for example, to allow the Director to gain experience in
the role) the individual’s salary may be increased to a market level by way of a series of above
inflation increases over two to three years, subject to their performance and development in the
role.

Purpose and link
to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance

conditions

FEES

To ensure that the
Group can attract
and retain the
appropriate
number and mix of
Non-executive
Directors with the
correct experience to
provide balance,
oversight and
challenge.

Non-executive
Directors’ fees are
reviewed on an
annual basis and are
subject to the Articles
of Association.
The Board will
exercise judgement in
determining the
extent to which fees
are altered in line with
market practice
given the requirement
to procure and retain
the appropriate skills
and given the
expected time
commitments.
Non-executive
Directors are paid an
annual fee with
additional fees for the
roles of Senior
Independent Director
and Chairmen of
Board committees.

Fees for the year
ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the
Annual Report on
Remuneration
(section B3.3).
Increases above
those awarded for
the rest of the
organisation may be
made to reflect the
periodic nature of
any review.
Changes in the scope
or responsibilities of a
Director’s role, or the
time commitment
required, may require
an adjustment to the
level of the fee.
The maximum level of
fees specified in the
Articles of Association
is reviewed by the
Board from time to
time.

None.

31



32

A new appointment would be offered benefits comparable to existing Directors, as well as other
reasonable expenses such as legal and relocation costs (if necessary on a net of tax basis).

The prevailing maximum bonus opportunity for existing Directors will not be exceeded for any newly
recruited Director and would be pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the year worked. It may be
necessary to set different performance measures and targets initially, dependent on the timing of
the appointment and the nature of the role taken up. Guaranteed bonuses will not be offered.

LTIP awards may be granted shortly after appointment (subject to the Company not being in a
closed period) and the quantum of the award may initially be larger than the maximum
opportunity of existing Directors in order to be able to attract the highest calibre of appointment.

Current entitlements (for example, bonus and share awards) which will lapse on the individual’s
departure from a previous position may be replaced with awards that have no shorter time
horizons, are subject to performance conditions and do not have a higher theoretical fair value.
The Committee retains flexibility to act on such basis as it deems appropriate in the circumstances.

In the event that an existing employee is promoted to the Board, any contractual commitments
made to the employee prior to such promotion will continue to be honoured even if they would not
otherwise be consistent with the policy prevailing when the commitments are fulfilled.

Service contracts
Executive Directors’ service contracts are appointed on one year rolling contracts in line with
current market practice and in the event of early termination provide for the payment of one
year’s salary and benefits. At 31 December 2014, Kevin Matthews held a service contract entered
into on 3 July 2014 (although his commencement date was 29 September 2014 as a result of notice
obligations to his previous employer) and Robin Cridland held a service contract entered into on
4 July 2012.

Policy on termination payments
The provisions of the Executive Directors’ service contracts will determine their entitlement to salary,
benefits, pension and bonus as compensation for loss of office. Specific change of control
provisions or entitlements to enhanced redundancy payments are excluded.

Any statutory entitlements or sums to settle or compromise claims in connection with the
termination would be paid as necessary. In specific circumstances, outplacement services and
relocation expenses may be provided at normal rates for Directors.

Bonuses are normally only payable where the individual remains employed and is not under notice
at the payment date. However, in certain good leaver situations (injury or disability, redundancy or
any other justification the Committee reasonably decides) a bonus may be payable at the
Committee’s discretion, based on an assessment of the performance of the individual and/or the
Company over the period of the bonus year worked.

The treatment of share based incentive awards will be determined at the discretion of the
Committee taking into account the relevant rules of the plan.

On determination of a good leaver status or as a result of a death, then awards under all plans
may be exercised within twelve months of the date of vesting, subject to HMRC rules as applicable.
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Consideration of shareholders’ views
The Committee considers shareholder feedback received in relation to the AGM each year and
from the Company’s regular engagement with major shareholders and their representative bodies,
together with any additional feedback received during other meetings and communications with
shareholders. All views received are reported back to the Committee which will take them into
account when formulating any material changes to the remuneration policy.

Details of votes cast for and against the resolution to approve last year’s remuneration report are
set out in section B3.3.

Legacy arrangements
For the avoidance of doubt, in approving this Policy Report, authority was given to the Company to
honour any commitments entered into with current or former Directors that have, or will have, been
disclosed to shareholders in remuneration reports before the Policy took effect.
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B3.3 Annual report on remuneration

B3.3.1 Application of policy

Consideration by Directors of matters relating to remuneration

Remuneration Committee
During the year, the Remuneration Committee consisted of Bryan Dobson (who chaired the
Committee), Jack Keenan (the Chairman of the Board) and Julian Heslop, all of whom are
considered to be independent Non-executive Directors.

None of the Non-executive Directors who sit on the Committee have any personal financial interest
in the business (other than as a shareholder), conflict of interest arising from cross-directorships or
day-to-day involvement in running the business. The Chairman of the Board does not participate in
discussions on his own remuneration.

The terms of reference for the Committee are available from the Company website at
http://revolymer.com (in the Investor Relations section and under Corporate Governance).

During the year the Remuneration Committee met three times, during which meetings it set the
salary review, bonus and equity incentive schemes for 2014, it reviewed performance and made
awards under these schemes and it devised the salary review, bonus and equity incentive schemes
for 2015.

Application of the remuneration policy for the year ending 31 December 2015

Salary and fees
The current levels of salaries and fees effective from 1 January 2015 are:

                                                                                                                                          2015                 2014
Executive Directors
Kevin Matthews                                                                                                       £210,000           £210,000
Robin Cridland                                                                                                         £194,000           £190,000
Roger Pettman(1)                                                                                                                   –           £200,000

Non-executive Directors
John Keenan                                                                                                              £60,000             £60,000
Bryan Dobson                                                                                                             £40,000             £40,000
Julian Heslop                                                                                                              £40,000             £40,000
Robert Frost                                                                                                                 £15,000             £15,000
Michael Townend(2)                                                                                                   £15,000             £15,000

(1) Dr Pettman resigned from the Group with effect from 31 January 2014.

(2) The fee in respect of the service of Mr Townend is paid to IP2IPO Limited, a subsidiary of IP Group plc.

Annual incentive
The annual bonus plan for 2015 is based for all staff on a number of challenging corporate
objectives which directly contribute to an increase in the value of the Company. For 2015, the
target bonus levels for Executive Directors on meeting all of these objectives are:

        Kevin Matthews 100% of base salary

        Robin Cridland 100% of base salary

The Committee considers that the performance metrics underpinning the annual incentive are in
line with shareholders’ expectations.
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Pension contributions and other benefits
Executive Directors are entitled to receive pension contributions amounting to 10% of base salary
and to be paid into a money purchase scheme. In addition, and in accordance with their service
contracts, they are also entitled to private medical expenses insurance, life assurance and
permanent health insurance.

Long-term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
The LTIP comprises an annual grant of performance shares to Executive Directors and senior
management under the Revolymer plc Long Term Investment Plan. The grant for 2014 was made
on 23 April 2014 based on 100% of base salary for Robin Cridland taking into account the then
current market price of the ordinary shares of 53.5p.

A 2015 grant to Kevin Matthews and Robin Cridland is anticipated once the Company is no longer
in a closed period and will be based on 150% of base salary for Kevin Matthews and 100% of base
salary for Robin Cridland taking into account the market price of the Company’s shares on the
date of the grant.

B3.3.2 Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2014

Single total figure of remuneration for each Director
The following tables have been prepared using the measures prescribed by the Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013.

In accordance with the Regulations, the values shown for share awards vesting in the year have
been calculated on the basis of the share price at the vesting date, which may not necessarily
equate to the price at which the awards have been or may be exercised.

Year ended 31 December 2014
Fixed remuneration Variable remuneration

                                                        Salary/                                                                       Share
                                                            Fees       Benefits       Pension          Bonus       awards            Total
                                                            £000            £000            £000            £000            £000            £000
Executive Directors
Kevin Matthews(1)                                   54                   2                   5                   –                   –                 61
Robin Cridland                                     190                   2                 19               111                   –               322
Roger Pettman(2)                                   267                 24                   2                   –                   –               293

Non-executive directors
John Keenan                                          60                   –                   –                   –                   –                 60
Bryan Dobson                                         40                   –                   –                   –                   –                 40
Robert Frost                                             15                   –                   –                   –                   –                 15
Julian Heslop                                           40                   –                   –                   –                   –                 40
Michael Townend(3)                                 –                   –                   –                   –                   –                   –
Total                                                       666                 28                 26               111                   –               831

(1) The amounts shown for Dr Matthews are in respect of the period from his appointment on 29 September 2014.

(2) Dr Pettman resigned from the Group with effect from 31 January 2014. A termination payment (determined by
reference to his contractual entitlements) of £250,000 was made following this date. This payment is included in
his salary.

(3) An amount of £15,000 was paid to IP Group plc for the services of Mr Townend.
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Year ended 31 December 2013
Fixed remuneration Variable remuneration

                                                        Salary/                                                                       Share
                                                            Fees       Benefits       Pension          Bonus       awards            Total
                                                            £000            £000            £000            £000            £000            £000
Executive Directors
Roger Pettman                                     200               111                 20                   –                   –               331
Robin Cridland                                     180                 18                 18                   –                   –               216

Non-executive Directors
John Keenan(1)                                       45                   –                   –                   –                   –                 45
Bryan Dobson                                         40                   –                   –                   –                   –                 40
Robert Frost                                             15                   –                   –                   –                   –                 15
Julian Heslop                                           40                   –                   –                   –                   –                 40
Michael Townend(2)                                 –                   –                   –                   –                   –                   –
Total                                                       520               129                 38                   –                   –               687

(1) In addition to the amount disclosed above, a further £12,766 was paid to Grand Cru Consulting Ltd for the
provision of the services of Mr Keenan.

(2) An amount of £15,000 was paid to IP Group plc for the services of Mr Townend.

Remuneration in respect of share awards is calculated by multiplying the number of shares vesting
in the year by the mid-market closing price of the shares on the vesting date.

The link between pay and performance – Annual incentive for the year ended
31 December 2014
The annual bonus for the year under review was based on performance against the metric of
executing significant licences or equivalent transactions across the Group’s business areas but
prioritising Consumer Specialties. The details were as follows:

Business Area Maximum
Performance Target 2014 Award made
Criteria Allocation Measure Outcome as % of Target

Up to 25% of Target One deal signed

Up to 75% of Target Two deals signed

TOTAL Up to 100% of Target – Three deals signed Total = 58.3%

Directors’ share options
The aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options
to acquire shares in the Company granted to or held by Directors except for those awards vesting
in the year.

1/3 x 25% = 8.3%One third of
Target
allocation per
deal signed

Material Nicotine
Gum deals signed

2/3 x 75% = 50.0%One third of
Target
allocation per
deal signed

Material Consumer
Specialties deals
signed
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Details of options over shares in Revolymer plc for Directors who served during the year are as
follows:

                                                                                                                                                      Exercise               Date                       
                                                      1 January       Granted/                       31 December               Price    from which

Name                       Scheme               2014         (Lapsed)   (Exercised)               2014                     £   exercisable    Expiry date

Roger Pettman               2008           408,090         (408,090)                   –                       –           0.20000         10/07/12         15/02/17
                                          EMI           417,120                     –        (417,120)                     –           0.26167         10/07/12         02/01/19
                                        2008           332,070                     –        (332,070)                     –                    nil         10/07/12         23/04/22
                                          EMI           171,870                     –        (171,870)                     –                    nil         10/07/12         29/06/22
                                        2008       1,203,090                     –     (1,203,090)                     –                    nil         10/07/12         10/07/22
                                          LTIP           281,690                     –                     –           281,690                    nil         09/01/16         09/01/23

                                                        2,813,930         (408,090)   (2,124,150)           281,690

Robin Cridland                 EMI           417,120                     –                     –           417,120           0.26167         10/07/12         12/11/18
                                        2008             98,970                     –                     –             98,970           0.26167         10/07/12         12/11/18
                                        2008           132,840                     –                     –           132,840                    nil         10/07/12         23/04/22
                                          EMI           171,870                     –                     –           171,870                    nil         10/07/12         29/06/22
                                        2008           378,120                     –                     –           378,120                    nil         10/07/12         10/07/22
                                          LTIP           253,521                     –                     –           253,521                    nil         09/01/16         09/01/23
                                          LTIP                     –           355,140                     –           355,140                    nil         23/04/17         23/04/24

                                                        1,452,441           355,140                     –         1,807,581

                                      Totals       4,266,371           (52,950)   (2,124,150)       2,089,271

Except for those granted under the LTIP, all of the above options were originally granted over the
shares of Revolymer (U.K.) Limited. Options shown as EMI are under an approved HMRC 2008
scheme while those shown as 2008 are under an unapproved 2008 scheme. As part of the
Admission documentation and via subsequent share exchange deeds, these options were
converted into options over Revolymer plc shares. Each option over 1 ordinary share in Revolymer
(U.K) Limited was converted into an option over 30 ordinary shares in Revolymer plc but at an
exercise price of one thirtieth of the original grant.

As part of his settlement arrangement, Roger Pettman was permitted to retain his LTIP grant over
281,690 Revolymer plc ordinary shares, subject to the same performance conditions as previously
(namely share price performance).

The market price of the ordinary shares at 31 December 2014 was 50.0p and the range during the
year then ended was 48.5p to 90.0p.

Directors’ interest in shares
The interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company at 31 December 2014, excluding options
over shares shown above, were as follows:

                                                                                                                                                      Number of
The Company – ordinary shares of 1p each                                                                     ordinary shares
John Keenan                                                                                                                                       781,750
Robin Cridland                                                                                                                                       16,800
Bryan Dobson                                                                                                                                         49,000
Julian Heslop                                                                                                                                          30,000
Michael Townend                                                                                                                                 35,940

The Board also requires the Executive Directors to maintain minimum interests (equivalent to 200% of
salary at the time of grant) before selling any ordinary shares that are the result of LTIP exercises,
except that they may sell that number of ordinary shares that are required to satisfy any income tax
and employee’s national insurance liabilities arising at exercise. This requirement shall not apply on
a change of control, or other transaction with substantially the same effect.
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B3.3.3 Other information
The information provided in this part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report is not subject to audit.

Performance graph
The following graph shows the Company’s TSR performance compared with the performance of
the FTSE All Share index.

The graph shows the value of £100 invested in Revolymer plc on Admission on 10 July 2012
compared with £100 invested on the same day invested in the FTSE All Share Index.

Consultations with shareholders
Revolymer attaches a high priority to effective communication with both private and institutional
shareholders. The AGM is the principal forum for dialogue with private shareholders. A business
presentation is made at the AGM and there is an opportunity for shareholders to put questions to
the Directors. Revolymer’s consultation with its institutional shareholders tends to be focused in the
periods immediately following the announcement of its audited preliminary results (historically in
March), its unaudited interim results (historically in September) and the achievement of commercial
milestones as appropriate, reflecting the annual cycle of open and closed (or prohibited) periods
that govern the communications of public companies. Such communications are designed to take
questions on and clarify as necessary the content of the announcements, and may take the form
of a programme of one to one visits, group meetings and briefings, or teleconferences.
Shareholders are also welcome to contact the Company with questions and constructive
feedback directly, using the contact details provided on our website or via our nominated adviser
and broker, Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited.

The Directors’ Remuneration Report, section B3 of this Annual Report, including both the Policy
Report and Annual Report on Remuneration has been approved by the Board of Directors.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr Bryan Dobson
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

27 March 2015
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The Directors of Revolymer plc (registered number 08024489) submit their report prepared in
accordance with Schedule 7 to the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 (‘Schedule 7’).

Directors and their interests
The Directors of the Company at 31 December 2014 were:

John (“Jack”) Keenan (Chairman);
Kevin Matthews (Chief Executive Officer);
Robin (“Rob”) Cridland (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary);
Bryan Dobson (Non-executive);
Robert Frost (Non-executive);
Julian Heslop (Non-executive);
Michael Townend (Non-executive).

As all Directors stood for re-election at the 2014 Annual General Meeting, in accordance with
article 90 of the Company’s Articles of Association no Directors need to stand for re-election at the
2015 Annual General Meeting. However, the Board has decided that in order to follow the
principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code, all Directors holding office at the date of this
report will offer themselves for re-election in 2015.

Biographical details of all the Directors at the date of this report are given in section B1.

The interests of the Directors in the share capital of the Company are disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneration Report in section B3. There have been no other changes in the Directors’ interests
since 31 December 2014.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company requiring more than twelve
months’ notice of termination to be given. None of the Directors had, either during or at the end of
the year, any material interest in any contract of significance with the Company or its subsidiaries.

Directors’ indemnity
Revolymer has purchased insurance to cover the Directors, officers and employees of Revolymer
plc and its subsidiaries against defence costs and civil damages awarded following an action
brought against them in their personal capacity whilst carrying out their professional duties for the
Group.

Dividends
Revolymer is seeking primarily to achieve capital growth for its shareholders. Its intention is to retain
future distributable profits, if any, and therefore does not anticipate paying any dividends in the
foreseeable future. The Directors therefore do not recommend payment of a dividend.

Charitable and Political donations
No contributions were made to charities or political organisations during the period.

Employees
Further details on employees, health and safety, environmental matters and corporate social
responsibility are contained in the Corporate Social Responsibility Statement in section A5.
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Post balance sheet events
There are no post balance sheet events to report.

Substantial shareholdings
In addition to the Directors’ interests, as disclosed in section B3, as at 9 March 2015 the Company
had been notified of the following shareholdings amounting to 3% or more of the ordinary share
capital of the Company:

Institution Shares held % holding
Woodford Investment Management 10,884,549 19.2%
IP Group 8,385,580 14.8%
Sand Aire 7,099,387 12.6%
Invesco Asset Management 5,264,451 9.3%
Swarraton Partners1 4,953,900 8.8%
Henderson Global Investors 3,470,500 6.1%
Naxos Capital Partners SCA Sicar 3,072,980 5.4%
Mr Roger and Mrs Sheila Pettman 1,869,047 3.3%
Baillie Gifford & Co 1,784,420 3.2%

1  Comprised of Swarraton Partners LLP and Swarraton Partners (Nominees) Limited.

The percentage interest has been calculated on the total voting rights of 56,561,140, being the
Company’s issued share capital on 9 March 2015. No other person has reported an interest in the
ordinary shares of the Company required to be notified to the Company.

Going concern
The Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, based on its anticipated
annual outflow of funds and current cash position. Accordingly, they have continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further detail is given in section A4.

Information presented in other sections
Certain information required to be included in a directors’ report by Schedule 7 can be found in
the other sections of this Annual Report. All of the information presented in those sections is
incorporated by reference into this Directors’ Report and is deemed to form part of this report.

Information given to the auditor
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this Annual Report confirms that:

• so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s
auditor is unaware;

• the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is
aware of that information.

The Directors are responsible for preparing this Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.
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Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor. A resolution
concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the 2015 Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board

Robin Cridland
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

27 March 2015
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Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. The
Directors are required by the IAS Regulations to prepare the Group financial statements under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and have
also elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union.

Under company law the Directors must not approve accounts unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company for that period. In preparing the
financial statements, IAS 1 requires that the Directors:

• properly select and apply accounting policies;

• present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable information;

• provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs is
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events or
conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance;

• make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ responsibility statement
We confirm to the best of our knowledge that:

• the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole;

• the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report include a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties they face.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of
Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

B5. Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
In relation to the financial statements
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C. Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Revolymer plc

We have audited the financial statements of Revolymer plc for the year ended 31 December 2014,
which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Parent Company
Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Cash Flow and the related notes 1 to 26. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement in section B.5, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the parent company’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in this Annual Report
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:

• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent
company’s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended;

• the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union;

• the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006;

• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.
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Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

• the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or

• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Alistair Denton (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP,
Statutory Auditor
Leeds, United Kingdom

27 March 2015

C. Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Revolymer plc
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D. The accounts

D1 The accounts

D1.1 Consolidated income statement

D1.2 Consolidated & company balance sheets

D1.3 Consolidated & company statements of changes in equity

D1.4 Consolidated & company statements of cash flow

D2 Notes to financial statements



46

                                                                                                                                                                                          2014           2013
                                                                                                                                                                      Notes          £’000         £’000

Revenue                                                                                                                                                               4          1,022             528
Cost of sales                                                                                                                                                                       (903)           (871)

Gross profit/(loss)                                                                                                                                                               119           (343)
Other operating income                                                                                                                                   5               32             194
Administrative expenses                                                                                                                                               (4,556)       (5,328)

Group operating loss                                                                                                                                          6         (4,405)       (5,477)
Finance income                                                                                                                                                  8             110             193

Loss for the year before tax                                                                                                                                          (4,295)       (5,284)
Taxation expense                                                                                                                                                9                 –                 –

Loss for the year                                                                                                                                                             (4,295)       (5,284)

Basic loss per share                                                                                                                                           10              7.7p           9.8p

Diluted loss per share                                                                                                                                       10              7.7p           9.8p

All results relate wholly to continuing activities.

There were no recognised income and expenses other than the loss for the year and the previous
year. Accordingly a separate consolidated statement of comprehensive income has not been
presented.

D1.1 Consolidated income statement
For the year ended December 2014



Group Company
                                                                                                                                                    2014           2013           2014           2013

                                                                                                                                Notes          £’000         £’000          £’000         £’000

Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings                                                                     11                 –                 –             567             192
Property, plant and equipment                                                                               12             314             364                 –                 –

                                                                                                                                                      314             364             567             192
Current assets
Inventories                                                                                                                   13             208             168                 –                 –
Trade and other receivables                                                                                     14             496             534               62               49
Investments                                                                                                                 15        11,500        15,500        11,500        15,500
Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                       16          1,686          2,182             348             223

                                                                                                                                                  13,889        18,384        11,910        15,772

Total assets                                                                                                                             14,203        18,748        12,477        15,964

Financed by
Equity shareholders’ funds
Equity share capital                                                                                                   22             566             542             566             542
Equity share premium                                                                                                             23,203        22,987        23,203        22,987
Own shares reserve                                                                                                                        (5)               (7)               (5)               (7)
Merger reserve                                                                                                                        17,626        17,626           (280)           (280)
Share based payment reserve                                                                                               6,374          5,999             567             192
Retained earnings                                                                                                                 (35,376)     (31,063)     (11,654)       (7,525)

Total equity                                                                                                                               12,388        16,084        12,397        15,909

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables                                                                                         17          1,815          2,314               80               55
Non-current liabilities
Finance lease obligations and other payables                                                      19                 –             350                 –                 –

Total liabilities                                                                                                                             1,815          2,664               80               55

Total equity and liabilities                                                                                                       14,203        18,748        12,477        15,964

The financial statements of Revolymer plc, registered number 08024489, were approved by the
Board of Directors for issue on 27 March 2015.

Robin Cridland
Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
                                                                                                                                                                    Share
                                                                                        Equity             Equity       Own                           based
                                                                                        share             share    shares       Merger   payment   Retained
                                                                                      capital       premium   reserve      reserve     reserve    earnings           Total
                                                                                        £’000             £’000      £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000

At 1 January 2013                                                               538            22,908            (8)       17,626          5,807       (25,779)       21,092
Retained loss for the year                                                     –                     –             –                 –                 –         (5,284)       (5,284)
Exercise of share options                                                       4                   79             1                 –                 –                 –               84
Share based payments                                                         –                     –             –                 –             192                 –             192

At 1 January 2014                                                               542            22,987            (7)       17,626          5,999       (31,063)       16,084
Retained loss for the year                                                     –                     –             –                 –                 –         (4,295)       (4,295)
Exercise of share options                                                     24                 216             2                 –                 –             (18)           224
Share based payments                                                         –                     –             –                 –             375                 –             375

At 31 December 2014                                                       566           23,203           (5)       17,626         6,374       (35,376)       12,388

Company statement of changes in equity
                                                                                                                                                                    Share
                                                                                        Equity             Equity       Own                           based
                                                                                        share             share    shares       Merger   payment   Retained
                                                                                      capital       premium   reserve      reserve      reserve    earnings           Total
                                                                                        £’000             £’000      £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000

At 1 January 2013                                                               538            22,908            (8)           (280)                –           (179)       22,979
Retained loss for the year*                                                     –                     –             –                 –                 –         (7,346)       (7,346)
Exercise of share options                                                       4                   79             1                 –                 –                 –               84
Share based payments                                                         –                     –             –                 –             192                 –             192

At 31 December 2013                                                       542            22,987            (7)           (280)           192         (7,525)       15,909
Retained loss for the year*                                                     –                     –             –                 –                 –         (4,111)       (4,111)
Exercise of share options                                                     24                 216             2                 –                 –             (18)           224
Share based payments                                                         –                     –             –                 –             375                 –             375

At 31 December 2014                                                       566           23,203           (5)          (280)           567       (11,654)       12,397

* The loss for the period includes a fair value impairment of group indebtedness of £3,886k (2013: £7,036k).

The reserves described above have the purposes described below:

Own shares reserve
The reserve records the nominal value of shares purchased and held by the Employee Benefit Trust
to satisfy the future exercise of options under the Group’s share option schemes.

Merger reserve
This reserve arose as a result of a common control business combination on the formation of the
Group.

Share based payment reserve
This reserve records the credit to equity in respect of the share based payment cost.

D1.3 Consolidated and company statements of changes in equity
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Group Company
                                                                                                                                                    2014           2013           2014           2013
                                                                                                                                Notes          £’000         £’000          £’000         £’000

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities                                               23         (4,697)       (4,311)               8           (321)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received                                                                                                                            98             193               93                 2
Purchase of property, plant and equipment                                                                         (121)           (183)                –                 –
Funds withdrawn from/(placed on) term deposits                                                               4,000          1,500          4,000       (15,500)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities                                                               3,977          1,510          4,093       (15,498)

Cash received from issue of shares                                                                                           224               84             224               84
Cash repaid by/(loaned to) subsidiary undertaking                                                                   –                 –         (4,200)       15,958

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities                                                                 224               84         (3,976)       16,042

Net inflow/(outflow) in cash and cash equivalents                                                               (496)       (2,717)           125             223
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                                                               2,182          4,899             223                 –

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                                                                           1,686          2,182             348             223
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1.  Statement of compliance with IFRS and Company information
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group
are set out in note 2. The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal activities are set out in
section A3.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of Standards and Interpretations issued, but not applied
in these financial statements as not yet effective, will have no material impact on the financial
statements of the Group.

2.  Accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The accounting policies which follow set out those policies which apply in preparing the financial
statements for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014. The Group financial
statements are presented in Sterling, because this is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(£’000) unless otherwise indicated. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the Directors,
having undertaken appropriate investigation including review of cash flow forecasts, believe
continues to be appropriate. The Group meets its day to day working capital requirements through
existing cash resources which, at 31 December 2014, amounted to £13.2 million (2013: £17.7 million).
These resources are estimated to fund the business at least into 2017.

Adoption of new and revised reporting standards

(a)  Standards adopted for the first time
IFRS 10 – ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, IFRS 11 – ‘Joint Arrangements’, IFRS 12 – ‘Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities’, IAS 27 (Revised) – ‘Separate Financial Statements’ and IAS 28
(Revised) – ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ form the new IFRS regime for
consolidation. These standards are effective for financial statements prepared under IFRS as
endorsed by the European Union for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

The adoption of these standards does not change the entities included within the consolidated
accounts from those previously consolidated, nor do consolidated results presented under the new
standards differ from how they would formerly have appeared.

(b)  Standards not yet adopted
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following International Financial
Reporting Standards and Interpretations, which have not been applied in these financial
statements, were in issue but not yet effective:

• IFRS 9 – ‘Financial Instruments’; and

• IFRS 15 – ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’.

The adoption of IFRS 9 will require changes to the valuation and income recognition methods
relating to the Group’s Receivables, Borrowings and Liabilities. This Standard will come into force
with effect from the Group’s financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2019, if it is
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endorsed by the European Union. The European Union has yet to indicate when it expects the
Standard to be endorsed. Following the publication of the final version of the Standard by the IASB
in July 2014, the Group has begun to assess its potential impact, and will report further on this in
future periods.

IFRS 15 will replace the standards currently governing the recognition of that part of the Group’s
income which does not derive directly from financial assets. If endorsed by the European Union, it
will come in to force with effect from the Group’s financial statements for the year ending
31 December 2018, and management will consider its potential impact on the Group’s financial
statements, if any.

Other Standards and interpretations in issue but not effective do not address matters relevant to
the Group’s accounting and reporting.

Consolidation
On 2 July 2012, the Company became the legal parent of Revolymer (U.K.) Limited in a share for
share transaction. Taking into account: the relative value of the companies, that the former
Revolymer (U.K.) Limited shareholders became the shareholders of Revolymer plc, and that the
Company’s continuing operations and executive management were those of Revolymer (U.K.)
Limited, the substance of the combination was that Revolymer (U.K.) Limited acquired Revolymer
plc in a common control combination.

Under the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, it would normally be necessary for the
Company’s consolidated accounts to follow the legal form of the business combination. In that
case the pre-combination results would be those of Revolymer plc and its subsidiary undertakings,
which would exclude Revolymer (U.K.) Limited. Revolymer (U.K.) Limited would then be brought into
the Group from 2 July 2012. However, this would portray the combination as an acquisition of
Revolymer (U.K.) Limited by Revolymer plc and would, in the opinion of the Directors, fail to give a
true and fair view of the substance of the business combination. Accordingly, the Directors have
adopted common control combination accounting as the basis of consolidation in order to give a
true and fair view.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Control is
achieved where the Company has power over each subsidiary, the exposure, or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with each subsidiary; and the ability to use its power over each
subsidiary to affect the amount of the Company’s returns.

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account is
presented for the Company.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and the seller no longer retains continuing
managerial involvement. The delivery date is usually the date on which ownership passes.
However, where goods are supplied when title does not irrevocable pass on delivery, it may not be
appropriate to recognise all the revenue immediately. The company provides for potential sales
returns based on its actual experience of returns from customers in such cases. Where it has no such

51



52

history it makes estimates by reference to minimum sales commitments in the relevant contract, or
by reference, where available, to customer retail sales data or customer inventory levels at the
financial year end, or based on other reasonable and relevant judgements.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised in full once the contract has been fully
completed and all obligations are satisfied.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to
match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal
annual amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure on an individual project is
recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the asset and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during development.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is
available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. During the period of
development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the year-end date. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Any exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded are recognised in the
income statement in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences on non-monetary items
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income to the extent that they relate to a gain
or loss on that non-monetary item taken to the statement of comprehensive income, otherwise
such gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

The assets and liabilities in the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated at the rate
of exchange ruling at the year end date. Income and expenses are translated at the actual rate.
The exchange differences arising from the retranslation of the opening net investment in
subsidiaries are taken directly to the ‘Foreign currency retranslation reserve’ in equity. On disposal
of a foreign operation the cumulative translation differences (including, if applicable, gains and
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losses on related hedges) are transferred to the income statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of all tangible assets
over their expected useful economic life on a straight-line basis. The rates generally applicable are:

Short leasehold equipment                                 – 5 years
Plant and equipment                                           – 4 years
Computer and office equipment                      – 3 years

Impairment of tangible assets with finite lives
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets with
finite lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from
other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately. Where an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Financial assets
Financial assets are cash or a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from
another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity. In addition, contracts that result in another
entity delivering a variable number of its own equity instruments are financial assets.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables, which generally have 30 day terms, are recognised and carried at the lower of
their original invoiced value and recoverable amount. Where the time value of money is material,
receivables are carried at amortised cost. Provision is made when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to recover balances in full. The amount of the write-down is determined
as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows.
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Cash and cash equivalents and investments
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand. Investments
comprise funds placed on short term deposits.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Finance leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value
of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in finance costs in the income statement.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Operating lease incentives are recognised as a liability when
received and subsequently reduced by allocating lease payments between rental expense and
reduction of the liability.

Income taxes
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, with the following
exceptions:

• Where the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

• Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carried forward
tax credits or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undisclosed basis at the tax rates
that are expected to apply when the related asset is realised or liability is settled, based on tax
rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or
charged to equity. Otherwise income tax is recognised in the income statement.
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Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into.

A financial liability exists where there is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial
asset to another entity, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under potentially
unfavourable conditions. In addition contracts which result in the Group delivering a variable
number of its own equity instruments are financial liabilities. Instruments which are legally share
capital containing such obligations are classified as financial liabilities.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are recognised and carried at their original invoiced value. Where the time value
of money is material, payables are carried at amortised cost.

Inventory valuation
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all costs incurred
in bringing each product to its present location and condition.

Share based payments
IFRS 2 requires the recognition of equity settled share based payments at fair value at the date of
the grant and the recognition of liabilities for cash settled share based payments at the current fair
value at each balance sheet date. All equity settled share based payments are ultimately
recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account with a corresponding credit to the share
based payment reserve.

If vesting periods or other non market vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the
vesting period based on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to
vest. Estimates are revised subsequently if there is any indication that the number of share options
expected to vest differs from previous estimates. Any cumulative adjustment prior to vesting is
recognised in the current period.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received net of attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and where appropriate, share premium. When nil cost options are
exercised the nominal value of the shares issued is charged to retained earnings.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Dividends and distributions relating to equity
instruments are debited direct to equity.

3.  Critical accounting assumptions and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.
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Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Inventory provisions
Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or
obsolete an estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this
estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but
which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the
inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

Share based payment cost
The estimation of share based payment costs requires the selection of an appropriate valuation
model, considerations as to the inputs necessary for the valuation model chosen and the
estimation of the number of awards that will ultimately vest, inputs for which arise from judgements
relating to the probability of meeting non-market performance conditions and the continuing
participation of employees (see note 24).

Fair value of group indebtedness (Company only)
The fair value of amounts owing from group companies is impaired in those cases where the
subsidiary is, at the balance sheet date, both illiquid and not yet generating positive cash flows
(see note 14).

Alleged patent infringement
In January 2013, the Company received notification from Fertin Pharma A/S and Gumlink A/S of the
commencement of alleged patent infringement proceedings against it in connection with the sale
of its nicotine gum in Canada. The estimated costs of defending this action were accordingly
provided for in 2013. However, as announced on 10 November 2014, this action was settled and
discontinued during the year and, as at the 31 December 2014, no further provisions associated
with the action are required.

4.  Revenue
Revenue recognised in the Group income statement is analysed as follows:

2014 2013
£’000 £’000

Sale of goods 820 780
Release/(deferral) for sales returns* 202 (252)

–––––––– ––––––––
Revenue 1,022 528–––––––– ––––––––
* The company estimates potential sales returns based on its actual experience of returns from customers. In those

cases where it has no such history it makes estimates by reference to minimum sales commitments in the relevant
contract or reference, where available, to customer retail sales data or customer inventory levels at the financial
year end.
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Geographical information
2014 2013
£’000 £’000

United Kingdom – –
Germany 1 –
Canada 1,007 495
Italy 14 17
United States – 16

–––––––– ––––––––
1,022 528–––––––– ––––––––

The revenue information is based on the location of the customer.

Segmental information
The revenue information is derived from one segment (i.e. gum, both confectionery and nicotine)
and net assets are attributable solely to the UK.

5.  Other operating income
2014 2013
£’000 £’000

Research income 30 194
Technology Standard Board grant income 2 –

–––––––– ––––––––
32 194–––––––– ––––––––

Research income relates to scientific research projects and testing undertaken on behalf of other
entities.

6.  Group operating loss
This is stated after charging:

2014 2013
£’000 £’000

Auditor’s remuneration
Audit of the financial statements 10 10
Audit of the subsidiaries 17 16

–––––––– ––––––––
Total audit fees 27 26

–––––––– ––––––––
Tax compliance services – –
Other non-audit services 10 12

–––––––– ––––––––
Total non-audit services 10 12

–––––––– ––––––––
Total fees 37 38–––––––– ––––––––
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2014 2013
£’000 £’000

Equity settled share based payment expense 375 192
Employer’s national insurance charge associated with vested 

share options (150) 13
Depreciation of owned assets 171 364
Minimum operating lease payments:

– land and buildings 92 92
– motor vehicles 5 8

Research and development expenditure 1,881 1,499
Provision of costs/(Release of provision) for defending alleged 

patent infringement (79) 486
Impairment of inventories 30 263
Inventory costs attributed to cost of sales 873 575
Foreign exchange differences

10 44
Settlement payment to outgoing CEO 250 –
Redundancy costs 59 –

7.  Staff costs
Staff costs, including Directors, consist of:

2014 2013
£’000 £’000

Wages and salaries 2,476 2,111
Invoiced by third parties 40 59
Post-employment benefits 90 100
Equity settled share based payment expense 375 192

–––––––– ––––––––
2,981 2,462–––––––– ––––––––

Details of Directors’ fees are included in the Directors’ remuneration report in section B3.

The average monthly number of employees, including Directors, during the year was made up as
follows:

2014 2013
No. No.

Executive Directors 2 2
Non-executive Directors 5 5
Research and development 27 27
Finance and administration 2 3
Sales 1 1
Contract staff 3 3

–––––––– ––––––––
40 41–––––––– ––––––––
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8.  Finance income
2014 2013
£’000 £’000

Interest receivable on bank deposits 110 193–––––––– ––––––––
9.  Taxation

2014 2013
£’000 £’000

Current tax
UK corporation tax – ––––––––– ––––––––
Total tax on loss on ordinary activities
The tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the income statement as follows:

2014 2013
£’000 £’000

Loss on ordinary activities before tax relief (4,295) (5,284)–––––––– ––––––––
Tax on ordinary activities at standard UK corporation tax 

rate of 21.5% (2013: 23.2%) (924) (1,226)
Effects of:
Expenses (deductible) for tax purposes (399) (105)
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances – 28
Increase in tax losses to carry forward 1,323 1,303

–––––––– ––––––––
Current tax credit for the year – ––––––––– ––––––––
Deferred tax
The Group has the following net deferred tax asset which is not recognised:

2014 2013
£’000 £’000

Accelerated capital allowances (17) (17)
Other timing differences – 3
Tax losses carried forward 7,174 5,358
Share based payments 292 753

–––––––– ––––––––
7,449 6,097–––––––– ––––––––

The net deferred tax asset is not recognised as there is insufficient evidence of future taxable profits
against which the asset will be available for offset.

59



60

Tax rate changes
Deferred tax has been calculated at the rate substantially enacted as at 31 December 2014, being
20%. The net deferred tax asset is not recognised as there is insufficient evidence of future taxable
profits against which the asset will be available for offset.

10.  Loss per share
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2014 2013
Loss
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted loss per share (£’000) 4,295 5,284–––––––– ––––––––
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the 

purposes of basic and diluted loss per share (’000) 56,092 53,996–––––––– ––––––––
Basic and diluted loss per share 7.7p 9.8p–––––––– ––––––––
The loss for the period and the weighted average number of ordinary shares for calculating the
diluted earnings per share for the period to 31 December 2014 are identical to those used for the
basic earnings per share. This is because the outstanding share options and warrants (note 24)
would have the effect of reducing the loss per ordinary share and would therefore not be dilutive.

11.  Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Company

£’000
At 1 January 2013 –
Share based payments 192

––––––––
At 31 December 2013 192
Share based payments 375

––––––––
At 31 December 2014 567––––––––

Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership

Name Principal activity and operation interest
Revolymer (U.K.) Limited UK operating company England 100%

Revolymer EBT Limited Trustee of Revolymer employee 
benefit trust England 100%

Revolymer (U.S.) Inc. Dormant US subsidiary of 
Revolymer (U.K.) Ltd USA 100%
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12.  Property, plant and equipment
Computer Short
and office Plant and Leasehold

equipment equipment equipment Total
Group £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Cost
At 1 January 2013 217 844 231 1,292
Additions 22 142 19 183
Disposals (36) (2) – (38)

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
At 1 January 2014 203 984 250 1,437
Additions 11 89 21 121

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
At 31 December 2014 214 1,073 271 1,558–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013 176 508 63 747
Charge 28 287 49 364
Eliminated on disposal (36) (2) – (38)

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
At 1 January 2014 168 793 112 1,073
Charge 23 89 59 171

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
At 31 December 2014 191 882 171 1,244–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 23 191 100 314–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
At 31 December 2013 35 191 138 364–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
Included within Plant and equipment and Short leasehold equipment are amounts held under
finance lease contracts. At 31 December 2014 the net book value of these assets was £Nil
(2013: £Nil).

13.  Inventories
2014 2013

Group £’000 £’000
Raw materials 29 31
Work in progress 45 11
Finished goods 127 117
Goods in transit 37 9
Provisions (30) –

–––––––– ––––––––
208 168–––––––– ––––––––
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14.  Trade and other receivables
Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Carrying values
Trade receivables 307 296 – –
Amounts owed by Group companies* – – 10,922 7,036
Other receivables 189 238 62 49

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
496 534 10,984 7,085–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

Fair values
Trade receivables 307 296 – –
Amounts owed by Group companies* – – – –
Other receivables 189 238 62 49

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
496 534 62 49–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

* Until such time as the subsidiary generates positive cash flows, the Directors consider the fair value of the
indebtedness to be £nil.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms.

As at 31 December 2014, a provision of £26k (2013 – £ Nil) has been made to trade receivables that
were considered to be impaired.

As at 31 December, the analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not impaired is as
follows:

                                            Neither
                                                  past
                                            due nor
                            Total     impaired   <30 days   30–60 days   60–90 days     90–120 days     >120 days
Group                 £’000            £’000          £’000             £’000             £’000                 £’000             £’000
2014                       307                   –             153                 142                     7                         5                     –
2013                       296                   –             224                     5                   30                       19                     1

15.  Investments
Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Term deposits maturing within one year 11,500 15,500 11,500 15,500–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
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16.  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with a
maturity of less than three months. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair
value.

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the cash flow statement:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cash at bank and in hand 1,686 2,182 348 223–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
Credit, liquidity and market risk
The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash and term deposits regarded as
investments that mature within one year. These deposits carry fixed rates of interest for their term.
The credit risk on these assets is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. The Directors have carefully reviewed the
carrying value of the Group’s financial assets and consider that at the date of this report no
impairment in those values is anticipated.

17.  Trade and other payables
Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Current liabilities
Trade payables 312 316 4 27
Finance lease obligations – 204 – –
Other payables and deferred revenue 1,503 1,794 76 28

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
1,815 2,314 80 55–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximate their fair
value.

18.  Contingent liability
In January 2013, the Company received notification from Fertin Pharma A/S and Gumlink A/S of the
commencement of alleged patent infringement proceedings against it in connection with the sale
of its nicotine gum in Canada. The estimated costs of defending this action were accordingly
provided for in 2013. However, as announced on 10 November 2014, this action was settled and
discontinued during the year and, as at the 31 December 2014, no further provisions associated
with the action are required.

19.  Non-current finance leases and other payables
Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Other payables – 350 – –
–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

– 350 – ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
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20.  Financial instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group finances its operations by raising finance through equity. No speculative treasury
transactions and no derivatives are entered into. Financial assets and liabilities include those assets
and liabilities of a financial nature, namely cash, receivables and payables.

Interest rate risk
The Group finances its operations principally from equity funding and therefore risk associated to
changes in interest rates is minimal. No sensitivity analysis has been presented for changes in
interest rates as these do not have a material impact on the loss before tax.

Currency risk
The Group makes most of its purchases in Sterling. Although some supplies are sourced from
overseas companies and payments required in foreign currencies, primarily Euros, the timescales
and value levels involved are not felt to result in significant exposure to foreign currency risk. The
receipt of CAD arising from the commencement of trade in nicotine gum towards the end of the
period will be appropriately managed going forward by the conversion into appropriate levels of
EUR and GBP. No forward foreign exchange contracts were entered into during the period (2013:
Nil). The Group has no non-monetary assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. At
31 December 2014 the bank balances on hand of foreign currencies were:

Currency 2014 2013
USD 25,411 35,636
CAD 341,757 797,692
EUR 5,713 5,789

No sensitivity analysis has been presented for changes in currency exchange rates as these do not
have a material impact on the loss before tax although management keep this risk under regular
review.

Liquidity risk
The Group seeks to manage financial risk, to ensure sufficient liquidity is available to meet
foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets safely and profitably. The Group’s policy through the
period has been to ensure continuity of funding by equity. The table below summarises the maturity
profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the year-end based on contractual undiscounted
payments.

At 31 December 2014:

                                                                            Less than           3 to 12
                                                        On demand       3 months         months   1 to 5 years       > 5 years            Total
                                                                    £’000             £’000             £’000             £’000             £’000           £’000

Trade and other payables                                 –             1,491                 324                     –                     –           1,815
Finance lease obligations                                 –                     –                     –                     –                     –                   –
                                                                ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––      ––––––––
                                                                            –             1,491                 324                     –                     –           1,815
                                                                ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––      ––––––––
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At 31 December 2013:

                                                                                      Less than           3 to 12
                                                        On demand       3 months         months   1 to 5 years       > 5 years            Total

                                                                      £’000             £’000             £’000             £’000             £’000           £’000

Trade and other payables                                –             1,739                 371                 350                     –           2,460
Finance lease obligations                                 –                     –                 204                     –                     –               204
                                                                ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––      ––––––––
                                                                            –             1,739                 575                 350                     –           2,664
                                                                ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––      ––––––––
Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. To manage its capital
structure the Company may issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the periods ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014.

Interest rates and maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities
The interest rates and maturity profiles of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, after the effect
of derivatives is as follows:

At 31 December 2014:

Within
1 year       1-2 Years       2-3 Years   3 to 4 Years   4 to 5 Years   Over 5 Years            Total
£’000             £’000             £’000             £’000             £’000                £’000           £’000

Group
Investments 11,500                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –         11,500
Cash and cash equivalents 1,686                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –           1,686

––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––           ––––––––      ––––––––
13,186                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –         13,186––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––           ––––––––      ––––––––

Company
Investments 11,500                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –         11,500
Cash and cash equivalents 348                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –              348

––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––           ––––––––      ––––––––
11,848                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –         11,848––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––           ––––––––      ––––––––

The range of interest rates applicable to instant access deposit accounts and term deposits at
31 December 2014 was 0.25% to 1.00% per annum (2013: 0.25% to 0.85%).

At 31 December 2013:

Within
1 year       1-2 Years       2-3 Years   3 to 4 Years   4 to 5 Years   Over 5 Years            Total
£’000             £’000             £’000             £’000             £’000                £’000           £’000

Group
Investments 15,500                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –         15,500
Cash and cash equivalents 2,182                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –           2,182

––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––           ––––––––      ––––––––
17,682                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –         17,682––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––           ––––––––      ––––––––

Company
Investments 15,500                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –         15,500
Cash and cash equivalents 223                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –               223

––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––           ––––––––      ––––––––
15,723                     –                     –                     –                     –                       –         15,723––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––         ––––––––           ––––––––      ––––––––
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Committed facilities
The Group has no floating rate committed borrowing facilities as at 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

There are no material differences between the fair value of financial instruments and the amount
at which they are stated in the financial statements. This is due to the fact that they are of short
maturity and if payable on demand the fair value is not materially different from the carrying value.

21.  Operating lease arrangements
The Group leases certain assets on an operating lease basis. At the balance sheet date, the Group
and Company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Within one year 93 95 – –
In two to five years 54 136 – –
Over five years – – – –

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
Total future minimum lease payments 147 231 – ––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––
22.  Share capital
                                                                                                                                      Group       Company
                                                                                                                                        £’000                £’000

At 1 January 2013 (53,778,700 shares in issue)                                                               538                   538
Issued as a result of an exercise of options
25/01/13 – 60,000, 04/07/13 – 3,000 and 10/10/13 – 324,480                                           4                       4
                                                                                                                                  ––––––––           ––––––––

At 31 December 2013 (54,166,180 shares in issue)                                                       542                   542
Issued as a result of an exercise of options
29/01/14-22,500, 25/02/14-417,120, 15/04/14- 1,535,160
                                                                                                                                              24                     24
30/06/14-70,000, 09/10/14-326,180, 19/12/14-24,000
                                                                                                                                  ––––––––           ––––––––

At 31 December 2014 (56,561,140 shares in issue)                                                        566                   566
                                                                                                                                  ––––––––           ––––––––

Revolymer plc was incorporated on 10 April 2012 and 2 subscription shares were issued with a
nominal value of 0.008p each. On 2 July 2012 a further 248 shares were issued and the resultant
250 shares were then consolidated into 2 ordinary shares with a nominal value of 1p each. The
remaining issues are as noted above.

In addition, at 31 December 2014 there were outstanding warrants in respect of the ordinary shares
as follows:

                                                                                                                    No. of    Exercise               Expiry
Holder                                                                                                        shares         Price                 date
XCAP Securities plc                                                                                 316,290         £0.92   31 May 2016
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23.  Notes to the cash flow statement
Group Company

                                                                                      2014                 2013               2014                   2013
                                                                                      £’000                 £’000               £’000                   £’000
Operating loss                                                           (4,405)             (5,477)           (4,216)               (7,396)
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment                                                          171                   364                     –                         –
Share based payments charge                                   375                   192                     –                         –
                                                                                ––––––––           ––––––––         ––––––––             ––––––––
Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital                                                  (3,859)             (4,921)           (4,216)               (7,396)
Cash (repaid by)/loaned to subsidiary

undertaking                                                                     –                       –               4,200               (15,958)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories                              (40)                    87                     –                         –
(Increase)/decrease in receivables                             51                  (234)                   (1)               22,994
(Decrease)/increase in payables                              (849)                  757                   25                       39
                                                                                ––––––––           ––––––––         ––––––––             ––––––––
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating

activities                                                                 (4,697)             (4,311)                    8                     (321)
                                                                                ––––––––           ––––––––         ––––––––             ––––––––
24.  Share based payments
An expense is recognised for share based payments based on the fair value of the awards at the
date of grant, the estimated number of shares that will vest and the vesting period of each award.
The charge for share based payments for the period to 31 December 2014 is £375k (2013: £192k) as
disclosed in note 6.

The information in the tables below relates to options over Revolymer plc ordinary shares as if they
had been in existence throughout the current and prior year.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under both schemes described below is
estimated as at the date of grant, using a Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to this model:

Grant date                                                                                                                      2014                 2013
Share price at grant date                                                                                           £0.535                 £0.71
Exercise price                                                                                                     £Nil – £0.535         £Nil – 0.71
Expected volatility                                                                                                           50%                   50%
Risk free rate                                                                                                                    0.5%                 0.5%
Expected dividend yield                                                                                                   0%                     0%
Expected option life                                                                                                   3 years             3 years

Expected volatility is determined with reference to the volatility of comparable companies’ share
prices. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate. The risk free rate is calculated based on the Bank of England base rate. The range of
exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was £nil – £0.535 (2013: £nil – £0.71).
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Employee share option plan – unvested options
During the year the Company operated an employee share option plan (“the EMI plan”) for the
benefit of certain employees of the Company.

All options granted in the year are subject to the employee completing a specified period of
service. All options lapse when the employee ceases to be employed by the Company.

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and
movements in, unvested share options outstanding under the “EMI plan” during the year:

2014 2013 
Number Number 

Unvested of shares WAEP of shares WAEP
Balance at beginning of year 330,316 £0.70 – –
Awarded during year 653,467 £0.40 340,316 £0.70
Lapsed during the year (139,000) £0.60 (10,000) £0.71

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Unvested options at end of year 844,783 £0.48 330,316 £0.70

–––––––––– ––––––––––

Unapproved share option plan – unvested options
During the year, the Company operated a share option plan for the benefit of employees who had
received grants under the EMI plan up to their personal limits.

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and
movements in, unvested share options outstanding under the Unapproved plan during the year:

2014 2013 
Number Number 

Unvested of shares WAEP of shares WAEP
Balance at beginning of year 692,957 £nil – –
Awarded during year 626,168 £nil 692,957 £nil

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Unvested options at end of year 1,319,125 £nil 692,957 £nil

–––––––––– ––––––––––

Summary of all options – vested and unvested
The following table summarises the position regarding all share options whether vested or not,
including those that vested at Admission in 2012:

2014 2013 
Number Number 

Vested and unvested of shares WAEP of shares WAEP
Balance at beginning of year 6,275,673 £0.13 6,332,340 £0.11
Awarded during the year 1,279,635 £0.20 1,033,273 £0.23
Lapsed during the year (547,090) £0.30 (654,460) £0.03
Exercised during the year (2,577,330) £0.09 (435,480) £0.19

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Balance at end of year 4,430,888 £0.16 6,275,673 £0.13

––––––––––– –––––––––––
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25.  Related party transactions
Transactions with key management personnel
Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the Directors, who are considered to be the key management personnel of
the Company, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 ‘Related
Party Disclosures’.

                                                                                                                                      2014                   2013
                                                                                                                                      £’000                   £’000

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits                                                       805                     649
Post-employment benefits                                                                                               26                       38
Directors’ fees invoiced by third parties                                                                         15                       28
Equity settled share based payment expense                                                           235                     126
                                                                                                                                ––––––––             ––––––––
                                                                                                                                      1,081                     841
                                                                                                                                ––––––––             ––––––––

Other related party transactions
The Group entered into the following related party transactions during the current and prior year:

IP2IPO invoiced the Group for the services of Mr Townend who has served on the Board of
Revolymer plc. Grand Cru Consulting Limited is a company controlled by Mr Keenan.

                                                                              Receipts         Payments  Amounts due  Amounts due
                                                                        from related         to related         to related    from related
                                                                                  parties             parties             parties             parties
2014                                                                             £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000
IP2IPO Services Limited                                                     –                     15                       4                       –
Grand Cru Consulting Limited                                         –                       –                       –                       –

                                                                                Receipts         Payments  Amounts due  Amounts due
                                                                        from related        to related        to related   from related
                                                                                  parties             parties             parties             parties

2013                                                                             £’000                £’000                £’000                £’000
IP2IPO Services Limited                                                     –                     15                       5                       –
Grand Cru Consulting Limited                                         –                     13                       4                       –

All related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. There have been no write-offs of related party balances during the year and there are
no provisions against any related party balances. The terms and conditions of related party
transactions are the same as those for other debtors and creditors.

26.  Post balance sheet events
There were no reportable post balance sheet events.
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REVOLYMER PLC
(incorporated and registered in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006

with registered number 08024489)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Revolymer plc (the “Company”) will
be held at the offices of Field Fisher Waterhouse LLP, Riverbank House, 2 Swan Lane, London
EC4R 3TT on 20 May 2015 at 11.00 a.m. (the “AGM”) to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the
following resolutions, of which resolutions 1 to 12 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions of the
Company and resolution 13 will be proposed as a special resolution of the Company.

1. To receive and consider the Company’s Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year
to 31 December 2014 (excluding the Directors’ Remuneration Report).

2. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the Directors’
remuneration policy approved at the 2014 Annual General Meeting) contained in the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the year to 31 December 2014.

3. To re-elect John Keenan as a Non-executive Director.

4. To re-elect Kevin Matthews as an Executive Director.

5. To re-elect Robin Cridland as an Executive Director.

6. To re-elect Bryan Dobson as a Non-executive Director.

7. To re-elect Robert Frost as a Non-executive Director.

8. To re-elect Julian Heslop as a Non-executive Director.

9. To re-elect Michael Townend as a Non-executive Director.

10. To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP of 100 Barbirolli Square, Manchester M2 3EY as auditors of the
Company to hold office from the conclusion of the AGM to the conclusion of the next AGM at
which accounts are laid before the Company.

11. To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors.

12. THAT in substitution for all existing authorities for the allotment of shares by the Directors, which
are hereby revoked but without prejudice to any allotment, offer or agreement already made
pursuant thereto, the Directors of the Company be and they are hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised, pursuant to section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “2006
Act”) to exercise all the powers of the Company to:

(a) allot shares in the Company and to grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any security
into such shares (all of which transactions are hereafter referred as an allotment of
“Relevant Securities”) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £188,537; and

(b) allot Relevant Securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £188,537 in connection
with a rights issue, open offer, scrip dividend scheme or other pre emptive offer which
satisfies the conditions and may be subject to all or any of the exclusions specified in
paragraph (b)(1) of the next following resolution,
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in each case for a period expiring (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company
in general meeting) at midnight on the date falling 15 months after the date of the passing of this
resolution or at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the passing of this
resolution, whichever occurs sooner, provided that the Company may before such expiry, variation
or revocation make an offer or agreement which would or might require such Relevant Securities to
be allotted after such expiry, variation or revocation and the Directors may allot Relevant Securities
pursuant to such an offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired or
been varied or revoked.

13. THAT, subject to and conditional upon the passing of resolution 12, the Directors be and they
are hereby empowered pursuant to section 570 of the 2006 Act to allot equity securities (within
the meaning of section 560 of the 2006 Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by
resolution 11 as if section 561(1) of the 2006 Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided
that such power:

(a) shall, subject to the continuance of the authority conferred by resolution 12, expire at
midnight on the date falling 15 months after the date of the passing of this resolution or at
the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the passing of this resolution,
whichever occurs sooner, but may be previously revoked or varied from time to time by
special resolution but so that the Company may before such expiry, revocation or
variation make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be
allotted after such expiry, revocation or variation and the Directors may allot equity
securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if such power had not expired or
been revoked or varied; and

(b) shall be limited to:

(1) the allotment of equity securities pursuant to a rights issue, open offer, scrip dividend
scheme or other pre emptive offer or scheme which is in each case in favour of
holders of ordinary shares and any other persons who are entitled to participate in
such issue, offer or scheme where the equity securities offered to each such holder
and other person are proportionate (as nearly as may be) to the respective numbers
of ordinary shares held or deemed to be held by them for the purposes of their
inclusion in such issue, offer or scheme on the record date applicable thereto, but
subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem fit or
expedient to deal with fractional entitlements, legal or practical problems under the
laws of any overseas territory, the requirements of any regulatory body or stock
exchange in any territory, shares being represented by depositary receipts, directions
from any holders of shares or other persons to deal in some other manner with their
respective entitlements or any other matter whatever which the Directors consider to
require such exclusions or other arrangements with the ability for the Directors to allot
equity securities not taken up to any person as they may think fit; and

(2) the allotment of equity securities for cash otherwise than pursuant to sub paragraph
(b) (1) up to an aggregate maximum nominal amount of £56,561.

By order of the Board

Robin Cridland
Company Secretary

27 March 2015

Notice of annual general meeting (continued)



Notes

1. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
attend, speak and vote instead of him or her. The proxy need not be a member of the Company. Where a
shareholder appoints more than one proxy, each proxy must be appointed in respect of different shares
comprised in his or her shareholding which must be identified on the proxy form. Each such proxy will have the
right to vote on a poll in respect of the number of votes attaching to the number of shares in respect of which
the proxy has been appointed but such proxies will only be entitled to one vote between them on a show of
hands. The proxy who is to exercise the one vote on a show of hands must be identified on the appropriate proxy
form. Where more than one joint shareholder purports to appoint a proxy in respect of the same shares, only the
appointment by the most senior shareholder will be accepted as determined by the order in which their names
appear in the Company’s Register of Members. If you wish your proxy to speak at the meeting, you should
appoint a proxy other than the Chairman of the meeting and give your instructions to that proxy.

2. To be effective an instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is executed (or a notarially
certified copy of such authority) must be deposited at the offices of Capita Asset Services, PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU so as to be received no later than 11.00 a.m. on 18 May 2015 except that: (a)
should the meeting be adjourned, such deposit may be made not later than 48 hours before the time of the
adjourned meeting; and (b) in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after it was demanded, such deposit
may be made not later than 24 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll.

3. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appointment
service may do so by utilising the procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST Personal Members or other
CREST sponsored members and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should
refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their
behalf. In order for a proxy appointment made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message
(a CREST Proxy Instruction) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s
(“EUI”) specifications and must contain the information required for such instruction, as described in the CREST
Manual. The message, regardless of whether it relates to the appointment of a proxy or to an amendment to the
instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received
by the issuer’s agent (ID RA10) by the latest time(s) for receipt of the proxy appointments specified in the notice
of meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken by the time (as determined by the timestamp
applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the
message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST
Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations
2001. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers, should note that
EUI does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system timings
and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the
CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal member or sponsored member
or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s)
take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system
by a particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsor or voting
service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical
limitations of the CREST system and timings.

4. Any corporation which is a member can authorise one or more person(s) to act as its representative(s) at the
meeting.

5. An abstention (or “vote withheld”) option has been included on the Form of Proxy. The legal effect of choosing
the abstention option on any resolution is that the shareholder concerned will be treated as not having voted on
the relevant resolution. The number of votes in respect of which there are abstentions, will however, be counted
and recorded, but disregarded in calculating the number of votes for or against each resolution.

6. In accordance with Regulation 41 of the Uncertified Securities Regulations 2001, the Company specifies that only
those shareholders registered in the register of members of the Company as at 6.00 p.m. on 18 May 2015 or, in
the event that the meeting is adjourned, in such register not later than 48 hours before the time of the adjourned
meeting, shall be entitled to attend, or vote (whether in person or by proxy) at the meeting in respect of the
number of shares registered in their names at the relevant time. Changes after the relevant time will be
disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.
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7. If you are a person who has been nominated under section 146 of the 2006 Act to enjoy information rights, you
may have a right, under an agreement between you and the shareholder who has nominated you, to be
appointed or to have someone else appointed for you as a proxy for the meeting. If you do not have such a
right, or you do have such a right but do not wish to exercise it, you may have a right under such an agreement
to give instructions to the shareholder who nominated you as to the exercise of the voting rights attached to the
ordinary shares in respect of which you have been nominated.

8. As at 9 March 2015, being the last practicable date before the publication of this notice, the Company’s issued
share capital consists of 56,561,140 ordinary shares, carrying one vote each, of No shares are held as treasury
shares and therefore the total number of votes at such date is 56,561,140.

9. Copies of Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment will be available for inspection for at least
15 minutes prior to the meeting and during the meeting.

10. If you have any queries about the meeting, please contact the Company’s registrars, Capita Asset Services, on
telephone number 0871 664 0300 (calls cost approximately 10p per minute plus network extras) from within the
UK or on +44 208 639 3399 if calling from outside the UK. Calls to the helpline from outside the UK will be charged
at the applicable international rate. Different charges may apply to calls from mobile telephones. Lines are open
8.30 a.m.–5.30 p.m. Mon–Fri. Calls may be recorded and randomly monitored for security and training purposes.
The helpline cannot provide advice on the merits of the transaction nor give any financial, legal or tax advice.

Notice of annual general meeting (continued)
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